Public Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING
Meeting

HFRA Hampshire Firefighters'
Pension Board

Date and
Time

Friday, 7th February, 2020 10.00 am

Place

Meeting Room C, Fire and Police
HQ, Leigh Road, Eastleigh

Enquiries
to

members.services@hants.gov.uk

Clerk to the Hampshire Fire and
Rescue Authority
John Coughlan CBE
The Castle,
Winchester
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations are in force, giving a legal
right to members of the public to record (film, photograph and audio-record) and report
on proceedings at meetings of the Authority, and its committees and/or its subcommittees. The Authority has a protocol on filming, photographing and audiorecording, and reporting at public meetings of the Authority which is available on our
website. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will make an announcement that the
meeting may be recorded and reported. Anyone who remains at the meeting after the
Chairman’s announcement will be deemed to have consented to the broadcast of their
image and anything they say.
Agenda
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence received.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To enable Members to disclose to the meeting any disclosable pecuniary
interest they may have in any matter on the agenda for the meeting,
where that interest is not already entered in the Authority’s register of
interests, and any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any such
matter that Members may wish to disclose.

3

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 3 - 6)
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

4

DEPUTATIONS
Pursuant to Standing Order 19, to receive any deputations to this
meeting.

5

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.

6

SCHEME ADVISORY BOARD - VERBAL UPDATE
To receive a verbal update on the Scheme Advisory Board.

7

LEGISLATION AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA)
UPDATE REPORT (Pages 7 - 54)
To receive a report providing an update on Legislation and the Local
Government Association.

8

FIRE PENSION BOARD STATUS REPORT (Pages 55 - 126)
To receive a report providing an update on the development of key
issues.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
This agenda is available on the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service website
(www.hantsfire.gov.uk) and can be provided, on request, in alternative versions
(such as large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.
ABOUT THIS MEETING
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the meeting. If
you have any particular requirements, for example if you require wheelchair
access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for assistance.

Agenda Item 3
AT A MEETING of the HFRA Hampshire Firefighters' Pension Board held at the
Fire and Police Headquarters, Eastleigh on Wednesday, 9 October, 2019

Chairman:
* Stew Adamson

*
*
*
*
*

Malcolm Eastwood
Richard North
Councillor Roger Price
Richard Scarth
Dan Tasker

*Present

Also present with the agreement of the Chairman:
Jo Thistlewood, Technical Finance Manager, Isle of Wight Council

76.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
All Members were present and no apologies were noted.

77.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members were mindful of their duty to disclose at the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interest they had in any matter on the agenda for the meeting, where
that interest was not already entered in the Authority’s register of interests, and
their ability to disclose any other personal interests in any such matter that they
might have wished to disclose.
There were no declarations of interest received for the meeting.

78.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the last meeting were reviewed and agreed.

79.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations on this occasion.

80.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman welcomed Richard Scarth to his first meeting of the Firefighters’
Pension Board.

Page 3

81.

SCHEME ADVISORY BOARD - VERBAL UPDATE
Members of the Pension Board received a verbal update from Malcolm
Eastwood and Councillor Price on the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme Advisory
Board (SAB) (Item 6 in the Minute Book).
Issues such as the McCloud judgement were highlighted as well as the
importance of good governance in ensuring data is complete and the reporting of
data breaches. Members also highlighted that it was important for Members of
the Board to be kept up to date with the Risk Register and it was agreed to
include this as a standard heading within the regular Fire Pension Board Status
Report.
Members of the Board were also updated on the SAB Annual General
Conference which was held on the 24 and 25 September 2019, and the valuable
networking opportunities at this event were noted. The Board heard that the
next Pensions Tax Seminar event would be held on the 12 November 2019.
RESOLVEVD:
That the Firefighters’ Pension Board noted the update on the Scheme Advisory
Board and agreed that the Risk Register be included as a standing item within
the Pension Board Status Report.

82.

LEGISLATION AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA) UPDATE
REPORT
The Board received a report of the Chief Finance Officer providing an update on
Legislation and Local Government Association (Item 7 in the Minute Book).
The report was introduced and Officers set out the position in respect of three
legal judgements which had been made and could impact Fire Pensions if
amendments were made to legislation. The background to the Langford and
McCloud judgements was explained and it was heard that there could be
changes to legislation as a result of these, and this would be watched with
interest. Members attention was drawn to Appendix A of the report which
provided greater detail on these two cases. Officers also explained the
background to the O’Brien judgement and the situation in relation to the 2006
Modified Fire Pension Scheme as more people challenged their employee rights.
The pressures on workloads for Fire Pension Services as a result of these
judgements was also highlighted.
Attention was drawn to Appendix I of the report - Firefighters’ Pension Scheme –
Administration and Benchmarking Review - and Members of the Board were
taken through the details of this review which was commissioned by the Scheme
Advisory Board. It was noted that the charge for pension administration was less
then the charge of administrating it. Officers highlighted the figures at page 3 of
Appendix I (page 81 of the agenda pack) which detailed the differences in
administration costs per member, depending on how many members were in the
scheme.

Page 4

RESOLVED:
That the Firefighters’ Pension Board noted the contents of the report.
83.

FIRE PENSION BOARD STATUS REPORT
The Committee received a report of the Chief Financial Officer (Item 8 in the
Minute Book), providing the Board with an update on ongoing issues.
The report was introduced, and the Board were updated on a number of key
issues which included statutory reporting and officer attendance at workshops
and conferences. In relation to statutory reporting, the Board heard that 100% of
annual benefit statements had been produced by the statutory deadline of 31
August 2019. The value of officer’s attendance at the Pensionable Pay
Workshop and the Annual Fire Pension Conference was highlighted as well as
the opportunities for networking and information sharing.
Attention was drawn to the number of people who had registered online for the
Members Portal which was detailed in paragraphs 11 – 15 of the report. It was
highlighted that there had been a poor uptake in registration, and Board
Members discussed how this could be improved. The Chairman highlighted that
he would look into the possible circulation of a global email to encourage
registration, which Managers could then cascade. A further discussion ensued
around raising awareness to online registration and the possibility of doing this
through the Fire Brigades Union, notice boards in fire stations and through RDS
support officers. Members of the Board were supportive of this approach.
Other issues relating to training and injury pension award reviews were also
highlighted. The Board were invited to consider the possibility of utilising the free
session of training as highlighted in paragraph 20. After discussion, Members
agreed to wait until the learning needs analysis forms were completed which
would be forwarded to Board Members shortly. The possibility of a wider training
session with other Fire Authorities was also discussed. In relation to injury
pension award reviews, it was heard that there were two pensioner members
who were due a review, and they had been written to in order to confirm whether
there had been any significant changes to warrant a review.
Officers explained the situation in relation to the Combined Fire Authority,
employer contributions and Government Actuary Department (GAD) valuation.
The Board heard that time pressures had meant that Hampshire Pension
Services (HPS) only had a few days to collate and check the data to be
submitted to the GAD. Appendix A to the report was highlighted which detailed
information specific to the data for Hampshire, and it was explained that there
were a number of mitigating circumstances as to why data was not as accurate
when submitted.

Page 5

RESOLVED:
a) That the Firefighters’ Pension Board noted the contents of the report.
b) That the Firefighters’ Pension Board approved sending out a cascade
message to all managers about the Member Portal as set out in
paragraphs 11-15 of the report, and also raise awareness of this through
the Fire Brigades Union, notice boards in fire stations and through RDS
Support Officers.
c) That the Firefighters’ Pension Board undertake individual training needs
analysis before inviting Clair Alcock to a future Board meeting to deliver
training.

Chairman,

Page 6

Agenda Item 7

Purpose: Noted
Date 7 FEBRUARY 2020
Title LEGISLATION AND
UPDATE REPORT

LOCAL

GOVERNMENT

ASSOCIATION

(LGA)

Report of Chief Finance Officer
SUMMARY
1.

This report, together with attachments, provides the framework for the agenda
item.

FPS BULLETINS
2.

LGA issue a bulletin at the end of each month; there have been three bulletins
issued since the last Fire Pension Board report. The bulletins are emailed out
to a variety of contacts but can also be accessed via the www.fpsregs.org
website.

3.

Bulletins 24, 25, 26 and 27 can be found in APPENDICES A, B, C & D. There
is a lot of information contained within these bulletins; the key items are set out
below.

FPS CONTACTS FOR HMRC (BULLETIN 24)
4.

HMRC were looking to update their contact details with regard to the Pensions
Manager and or a senior person responsible for pension administration for
each FRA.

5.

The Board will be pleased to note that the Employer Pension Manager sent
the required details for Hampshire FRA to the LGA.
ADMIN & BENCHMARKING COMMITTEE VACANCY (BULLETIN 24)

6.

At the time of writing, there was still a vacancy on the Administration and
Benchmarking committee for an FRA Local Pension Board representative.

Page 7

7.

The main objectives of the committee are to provide guidance to the SAB to
understand the value and cost of administration and consider how
administrators can best be supported by identifying best practice.

8.

The committee are currently involved in considering the recommendations
made by Aon in the administration and benchmarking review and how these
can be progressed.

9.

The required commitment is attendance at three to four meetings per year,
generally held in London. If any Board members are interested, please email
clair.alcock@local.gov.uk
FPS MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE FACTSHEET (BULLETIN 24)

10. The LGA have produced a new factsheet on FPS Management and
Governance. This factsheet highlights the role of stakeholders and the
guidance that is available to ensure good governance and management of the
scheme. It also helps to highlight the relationship between the different
stakeholder groups and the support networks available.
11. The Factsheet can be found in APPENDIX E.
TPR PUBLISH LGPS ENGAGEMENT REPORT (BULLETIN 24)
12. TPR published a report on the findings from its engagement with 10 Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds, which took place between
October 2018 and July 2019.
13. The report summarises the key findings against the Regulators Code of
Practice 14 both in terms of exceeding and falling short of required standards.
14. TPR have confirmed that they are planning future supervisory and
engagement work with a number of FRAs
TPR 6 KEY PROCESSES (BULLETIN 25)
15. TPR has a statutory duty for regulatory oversight and monitors six key
processes as part of their annual governance and administration survey.
The six key processes are
(a)
Documented policy to manage board members conflicts of interests
(b)
Access to knowledge, understanding and skills needed to properly run
the scheme
(c)
Documented procedures for assessing and managing risks
(d)
Process to monitor records for accuracy / completeness
(e)
Process for resolving contribution payment issues
(f)
Procedures to identify, assess and report breaches of law

Page 8

16. The Board will be pleased to note that Hampshire has all six processes in place
and this was reflected in the 2019 annual administration and governance
survey.
FRA WORKFORCE & PENSION STATS (BULLETIN 26)
17. The Home Office has published the FRA workforce and pension statistics for
2018/19, this is based on data returns on income, expenditure and
membership submitted by all 45 FRAs in England.
18. Some key results
(a)
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme expenditure in 2018/19 was around
£856 million
(b)
In 2018/19, 81% of expenditure was “recurring outgoing payments”
and 18% was “commutation payments”
(c)
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme income in 2018/19 was around £257
million
(d)
In 2018/19, 53% of income was “employer contributions”, 44% was
“employee contributions” and the remaining 4% comprised transfers,
miscellaneous income and ill-health charges
(e)
The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme deficit in 2018/19 was around
£599 million
(f)
As at 31 March 2019, the total number of pensioner members was
43,665. Of these, 95% were members of FPS 1992
ABS 2019 SURVEY (BULLETIN 26)
19. LGA issued their ABS survey for 2019 and welcome completed surveys from
both the FRA and the administrator.
20. The Board will be pleased to note that the Employer Pension Manager
completed the survey on behalf of the FRA, stating that we had issued 100%
of ABS’ by 31 August for both active and deferred members of all schemes
and that there were no breaches, material or otherwise.
CIVIL PARTNERSHIP REGS (BULLETIN 26)
21. On 5 November 2019 the Government made the Civil Partnership (OppositeSex-Couples) Regulations 2019 which are effective from 2 December 2019.
22. This means that an opposite-sex couple can give notice of a proposed civil
partnership on 2 December 2019 after which, the 28 day waiting period will
commence. This means that an opposite-sex civil partnership registration can
take place from 31 December 2019.
23. These regulation were made in response to the Government consultation
published on 10 July 2019 which proposed changing the law to allow oppositesex couples to form civil partnerships.

Page 9

24. Also amended is section 37 of the Marriage (Same Sex Couples) Act 2013
which enables the conversion of a same sex civil partnership into a marriage.
McCLOUD/SARGEANT CASE (BULLETIN 27)
25. The Board will note that there is a main update on the McCloud/Sargeant case
contained within the Fire Pension Board status report.

RECOMMENDATION
26. The Board are asked to note the contents of this report.

APPENDICES ATTACHED
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.

APPENDIX A - FPS Bulletin 24
APPENDIX B - FPS Bulletin 25
APPENDIX C – FPS Bulletin 26
APPENDIX D – FPS Bulletin 27
APPENDIX E – FPS Management and Governance factsheet

Contact:
Claire Neale, Employer Pension Manager, claire.neale@hants.gov.uk,
01962 845481

Page 10

APPENDIX A

FPS Bulletin 24 – September 2019
Welcome to issue 24 of the Firefighters’ Pensions Schemes bulletin.
If you are looking for information on a certain topic, issue and content indexes are held on the main
bulletin page of the website and are updated following each new issue.
If you have any comments on the contents of this bulletin or suggested items for future issues, please
contact Claire Hey.

Contents
Calendar of events
FPS









Firefighters' Pensions: Board of Medical Referees - appointment of new contractor
Claims for refunds of NICs - FPS 2006 special members
GAD data improvement reports for FRAs now issued
TPR data measuring review
FPS contacts for HMRC – a gentle reminder
SAB Administration & Benchmarking committee vacancy
New factsheet – FPS Management and Governance
September query log

Other News and Updates




ICO changes to GDPR
TPR publish LGPS engagement report
Uprating of UK State Pension recipients living in the EU after Brexit

HMRC


Contracting-out reconciliation update

Training and Events



FPS AGM – event summary
Training survey research report

Useful links
Contact details

Page 11

Calendar of events
Please see below a calendar of upcoming events relevant to the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. Only
those events which are hyperlinked are currently available to book. If you have any events you would
like to be included in a future bulletin, please contact Claire Hey.
SAB

3 October 2019

North East regional group

4 October 2019

Fire Finance Network conference: Arden Warwick Conferences
Fire Communications Working Group

9-10 October 2019

SAB Administration & Benchmarking/ Costeffectiveness committee
South East regional group

24 October 2019

Pensions tax seminar

12 November 2019

SAB LPB effectiveness committee

14 November 2019

SAB

12 December 2019

Firefighters’ Pensions AGM – save the date!

22-23 September 2020

16 October 2019

28 October 2019

FPS
Firefighters' Pensions: Board of Medical Referees - appointment of new contractor
The contract for providing the Board of Medical Referees (BMR) to consider medical appeals under
the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes (in England) is currently held by Health Management Limited and
will expire on 30 September 2019.
Following the completion of a formal tendering process, the Home Office can now confirm that it has
appointed the successful applicant, Duradiamond Health Ltd, to provide the BMR from 1 October 2019
onwards.
Further information on the company can be accessed at: https://www.duradiamondhealth.com/.
It has been agreed that any new medical appeal cases referred to the BMR on or after 14 September
2019 will be considered by Duradiamond Health Ltd. In order to facilitate a seamless transition to the
new contractor, FRAs are asked to hold off referring any new appeal cases to the BMR during the
period 14 to 30 September 2019 - these cases can then be referred to Duradiamond Healthcare from
the 1 October onwards. Any cases referred to the BMR before 14 September will be seen through to
conclusion by Health Management Ltd.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 12

2

While it is not expected that the appointment of Duradiamond Healthcare Ltd as the new contractor
will change the current medical appeals arrangements, the Home Office will provide further detail in
due course on hearing fees, hearing venues and the address that new appeal claims should be sent
to, etc.
Contact details for Duradiamond Healthcare Ltd are as follows:
Email: pfmab@duradiamondhealth.com
Phone: 01273 963729
Postal Address: Duradiamond Healthcare
Tribune House
Bell Lane
Bellbrook Industrial Estate
Uckfield
East Sussex TN22 1QL
Please contact philip.perry@homeoffice.gov.uk if you would like to discuss any of the above.

Claims for refunds of NICs - FPS 2006 special members
HMRC has received claims for refunds of National Insurance Contributions (NICs) in relation to
retained firefighters who have taken up backdated membership of their employer’s pension scheme
as special members of FPS 2006. A refund will be due for the difference between the amount already
paid and the amount due at the lower contracted-out rate for the period of contracted-out
employment.
However, for the employment to be treated as contracted-out employment a valid contracting-out
certificate will need to be in place. Each of the affected FRAs will need to make a formal election to
vary their pre 2016 contracting-out certificate, to backdate the start date of the certificate to 6 April
2000.
HMRC will contact you shortly to let you know what action you need to take. Once your backdated
contracted-out certificate is issued, HMRC will be able to process your refund claims.

GAD data improvement reports for FRAs now issued
As detailed in FPS Bulletin 23 – August 2019, the individual data improvement reports from GAD have
now been sent to the Chief Officer and Local Pension Board chair at each FRA.
If you are not aware that your authority has received this information and would like to have sight of
the document, please contact bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

TPR data measuring review
We have recently been informed that some authorities may have received an email entitled ‘Our
records show you don’t measure your data’ from the Pension Regulator (TPR). We have sought
reassurance that this is not a scam email, and can confirm this is a genuine request from TPR as the
first stage of one of their regulatory initiatives, based on information supplied in the scheme return
last year.
This year’s scheme return invitations are imminent, so FRAs have an opportunity to rectify the
information TPR hold. The Exchange system is open all year for updates to scheme information and
Click here to return to Contents

Page 13

3

TPR encourage schemes to maintain the information held throughout the year, not just in response
to a scheme return request.

FPS contacts for HMRC – a gentle reminder
Also in the August bulletin, we requested contact details of the Pensions Manager or senior person
responsible for pensions administration within each FRA to provide to HMRC to help get their records
as up to date as possible.
So far, we have received 19 of an expected 44 responses for England. Please consider this a gentle
reminder of the following action.
ACTION: FRAs to provide the name, address, telephone number, and email address for the pensions
manager or senior responsible person.
Please email bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk by 15 October 2019 using the subject line “FPS
contacts for HMRC”.

SAB Administration & Benchmarking committee vacancy
A vacancy has arisen on the Administration & Benchmarking committee for an FRA Local Pension
Board representative. The main objectives of the committee are to provide guidance to the SAB to
understand the value and cost of administration, and consider how administrators can best be
supported by identifying best practice. The committee are currently involved in considering the
recommendations made by Aon in the administration and benchmarking review and how these can
be progressed.
The required commitment is attendance at three to four meetings per year, generally held in London.
Attendance can be made by conference call if necessary. If you are interested in sitting on the
committee, please email clair.alcock@local.gov.uk for further information.

New factsheet – FPS Management and Governance
We have recently produced a factsheet on the management and governance of the England
Firefighters’ Pension Schemes (FPS) in order to highlight the roles of stakeholders and the guidance
that is available to ensure good governance and management of the scheme.
While the factsheet will be interesting to all stakeholders, it will be particularly beneficial to those new
to the FPS family, to give an overview of the relationship between stakeholder groups and the support
networks available.
The factsheet has been published on the factsheets tab of the FPS Regulations and Guidance website
and is also attached as Appendix 1.

September query log
The current log of queries and responses is available on the FPS Regulations and Guidance website.
The queries have been anonymised and divided into topics. The log will be updated on a monthly basis
in line with the bulletin release dates.
Queries from earlier months have been grey-shaded to differentiate from new items added in August.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 14

4

Other News and Updates
ICO changes to GDPR
While GDPR has now been in force for some time, it is important for data controllers and processors
to keep up to date with changes made by the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO).
Recent updates include a change in position on calculating the time limit for responding to requests
in relation to individual rights, and additional guidance around “manifestly unfounded and excessive”
requests.
All the latest news is available from the following link https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-todata-protection/whats-new/

TPR publish LGPS engagement report
On 19 September, TPR published a report on the findings from its engagement with 10 Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds. The engagement took place between October 2018 and
July 2019.
The report summarises the key findings against the Regulator’s Code of Practice 14 both in terms of
exceeding and falling short of required standards.
TPR have confirmed that they are planning future supervisory and engagement work with a number
of FRAs.

Uprating of UK State Pension recipients living in the EU after Brexit
The government has committed to uprating the UK State Pension paid to those living in the EU each
year until March 2023, in the event that the UK leaves the EU without a deal on 31 October 2019.
During this three year period the Government plans to negotiate a new arrangement with the EU to
ensure that uprating continues.

HMRC
Contracting-out reconciliation update
The following bulletin, containing important guidance and information about the end of contracting
out and the scheme reconciliation process, was published by HMRC on 30 August 2019.
Countdown bulletin 48
Updates include:
 Final Data Cuts for Ceased Schemes
 Approach for producing Final Data Cuts
 Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Conversion

Click here to return to Contents

Page 15

5

Training and Events
FPS AGM – event summary
In keeping with tradition, our annual fire pensions conference two day event opened with a meeting
of the regional chairs of each fire pensions officer group, followed by the technical community. You
can find out more about the work of each of these forums, along with the various other stakeholder
groups involved with FPS administration, governance, and management in our new factsheet.
We were delighted to welcome over 60 delegates to the first full conference session, aimed at scheme
managers and Local Pension Boards, along with other parties with an interest in FPS governance.
Following the Chair’s welcome, the audience heard from Gavin Chambers, ACO and chair of
Bedfordshire FRS LBP, on his experiences before participating in a lively debate on the efficiency of
boards and challenges of assisting the scheme manager.

TPR then took to the stage to present the headline results from the 2018 Governance and
Administration survey, including everyone’s favourite slide – “the spider diagram of doom”.

We ended the day with a networking drinks reception and although the weather was not quite as
accommodating as last year, this didn’t seem to dampen the animated conversation between
colleagues and friends.
The day 1 presentations are available here.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 16

6

The full technical/ administration AGM took place on day 2 with a record attendance of around 120
delegates in our Bevin Hall conference room at 18 Smith Square.
Malcolm Eastwood, chair of the FPS (England) SAB, once again opened proceedings, outlining some of
the complexities in managing the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. We were then delighted to welcome
Amar Pannu, Head of Police and Firefighters’ Pensions at the Home Office, to provide a view from
central government including updates on the transitional protections case and the 2020 scheme
valuation.
Twelve months after launching the FPS administration and benchmarking review, Craig Payne from
Aon, was back on stage at the AGM to present a summary of the review outcomes and
recommendations. Read the full and final report here.

Following a short break, attendees were given the option to join one of three technical workshops:
National performance monitoring; Abatement; and Transitional pension calculations refresher. All
workshops were well attended and received positive feedback. Thank you to our facilitators and those
who participated.
Lunch followed the short workshop feedback session, and delegates had chance to network with
colleagues and visit exhibition stands hosted by the following organisations: Barnett Waddingham,
Eversheds Sutherland, ITM, and Income for the Third Age.
We make a special apology here to Laura of Pen-gage https://www.pengage.co.uk/ and Mark from
Income for the Third Age https://i3aguidance.co.uk/, as we somehow managed to lose a box of
promotional leaflets which had been delivered in advance to the office.
In the tough first afternoon slot, Alec Bennett from Eversheds Sutherland provided the ever-popular
case law update, taking the audience on a whistle stop tour of recent court and Pensions Ombudsman
decisions. And the final session of the day was delivered by the Bluelight lead Clair Alcock, who gave
an update on the work of the team and future plans.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 17

7

Malcolm Eastwood closed the conference for 2019 with a fond farewell, as he retires as chair of the
SAB in March 2020.
We would like to thank all for their participation and support, particularly our speakers and exhibitors
for contributing to the success of the event, and to all delegates who took time out of their busy
schedules to attend. We look forward to seeing you again next year – save the date 22-23 September
2020!
The day 2 presentations are available here. To view the full conference in pictures, visit our
@LGAWorkforce twitter feed, #LGAfirepensions

Training survey research report
Between 31 May and 31 July 2019, FPS stakeholders were invited to take part in a web-based survey
on the current and future training provision offered by the LGA Bluelight team, to ensure that the LGA
training offer remains relevant and that the statutory levy provides value for money.
During that time a total of 51 responses were received from across a wide range of FPS stakeholders
in England, Wales, and Scotland.
Having collated and analysed the responses, we are pleased to present the final research report, which
will be used to inform our training plan for 2020.
The LGA would like to thank all those that were able to submit a response for their participation in the
survey, and for continuing to support the work of the Bluelight team.

Useful links









The Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory Board
FPS Regulations and Guidance
Khub Firefighters Pensions Discussion Forum
FPS1992 guidance and commentary
The Pensions Regulator Public Service Schemes
The Pensions Ombudsman
HMRC Pensions Tax Manual
LGA pensions website

Click here to return to Contents

Page 18

8

Contact details
Clair Alcock (Bluelight Senior Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3189
Email: clair.alcock@local.gov.uk
Kevin Courtney (NPCC Pensions Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3202
Email: kevin.courtney@local.gov.uk
Claire Hey (Firefighters’ Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3205
Email: claire.hey@local.gov.uk

Click here to return to Contents

Page 19

9

APPENDIX B

FPS Bulletin 25 – October 2019
Welcome to issue 25 of the Firefighters’ Pensions Schemes bulletin.
If you are looking for information on a certain topic, issue and content indexes are held on the main
bulletin page of the website and are updated following each new issue.
If you have any comments on the contents of this bulletin or suggested items for future issues, please
contact Claire Hey.

Contents
Calendar of events
FPS










TPR – 6(66) key processes
Fire Finance Network – a message from the Chair
FPS forecasting guidance
Revised Fire (England) factors: Non-Club Transfer-In
Valuation data
Eligibility factsheet updated
TPR data requirements - 2019 scheme return
GAD Fire pension accounting disclosures
October query log

Other News and Updates




The Queen’s Speech
GAD PSPS newsletter
TPO corporate plan 2019 – 2022

HMRC


Contracting-out reconciliation update

Training and Events


Pensions tax – London – 12 November 2019

Page 20

Useful links
Contact details
Calendar of events
Please see below a calendar of upcoming events relevant to the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. Only
those events which are hyperlinked are currently available to book. If you have any events you would
like to be included in a future bulletin, please contact Claire Hey.
Pensions tax seminar

12 November 2019

SAB LPB effectiveness committee

14 November 2019

Midlands regional FPOG

19 November 2019

SAB

12 December 2019 - TBC

North East regional FPOG

4 March 2020

LGA annual Fire conference and exhibition

10-11 March 2020

SAB

19 March 2020

SAB

11 June 2020

SAB

17 September 2020

Firefighters’ Pensions AGM – save the date!

22-23 September 2020

SAB

10 December 2020

FPS
TPR – six key processes
The Pensions Regulator (TPR), who has a statutory duty for regulatory oversight under the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013 monitors six key processes as part of their annual governance and
administration survey. TPR use these key processes as indicators of public service pension scheme
performance.
The six processes are:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

Documented policy to manage board members conflicts of interest
Access to knowledge, understanding and skills needed to properly run the scheme
Documented procedures for assessing and managing risks
Process to monitor records for accuracy / completeness
Process for resolving contribution payment issues
Procedures to identify, assess and report breaches of the law

Click here to return to Contents

Page 21

2

In 2018, only 63% of Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (FPS) across the UK reported having all six processes
in place1.

Figure 1 Spider-diagram of doom

Following feedback from FRAs, a factsheet2 has been prepared to give further guidance on the six key
processes in order to achieve a higher rate of understanding and compliance ahead of the 2019 survey.

Fire Finance Network – a message from the Chair
The Fire Finance Network (FFN) is an informal network of finance professionals from across the Fire
Sector and is a great way to engage with colleagues from other Fire and Rescue Services.
The FFN meets quarterly and holds an annual conference, where attendees receive updates on
strategic and technical issues; recent speakers included the Home Office Fire Funding team and CIPFA
Police and Fire advisor. Key members of the FFN also sit on the National Fire Chief’s Council Finance
Co-ordination Committee and so are ideally placed to influence nationally.
We are particularly keen to hear from colleagues who work with county and devolved Fire Services to
ensure their voices are heard. Membership is free and the best way to get involved is via our
Workplace page as information and events are shared regularly – if you would like to join please
contact the FFN Chair, Amy Webb, via email at awebb@dsfire.gov.uk.

1

Slide 6 – LGA Fire Pensions Conference Day One 24 September 2019
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/TPR%20Update.pdf
2
http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/TPR-6-key-processes.v1.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 22

3

FPS forecasting guidance
Following the workshop on Forecasting Public Service Pensions held at the 2018 annual conference,
the Home Office facilitated a working group to produce guidance for FRAs when calculating pension
forecasts for the FPS top-up grant.
While this should already have been circulated to relevant stakeholders in line with the forecasting
timetable, we are pleased to now include the guidance as Appendix 1 to the bulletin.

Revised Fire (England) factors: Non-Club Transfer-In
Further to the letter issued by the Home Office on 31 October 2018 regarding the review of scheme
factors due to the change to the SCAPE discount rate, GAD has provided replacement factor tables for
FPS 2006 special member non-club transfer-in cases [table reference x-218 to x-219].
The suspension of any outstanding cases can be lifted and these factors can be used with immediate
effect.
The updated table is available at http://fpsregs.org/index.php/gad-guidance/transfers-in. GAD has
informed us that they will update the guidance and example calculations to reflect these revised
factors at a later date.
ACTION: Pension Board Chairs and Scheme Managers, please ensure you liaise with your pension
manager to ensure that the factors are applied with immediate effect.
The table of consolidated factors at Appendix 2, which includes implementation dates for all changes,
has been updated to reflect the addition of the special member TV-in factors.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 23

4

Valuation data
As valuation year 2020 fast approaches, we wish to encourage FRAs to try and mitigate as many data
issues as possible by ensuring that the data you hold is both correct and up-to-date before the yearend.
In particular we recommend that you ensure the following information is accurate:





Contribution details
Joiners and leavers
Changes to the members details, including addresses,
Any payments that qualify for Additional Pension Benefits

Eligibility factsheet updated
Minor amendments have been made to the factsheet on ‘Eligibility to join FPS’ to correct a referencing
error. Clean3 and tracked4 versions are available.
We have also taken the opportunity to produce a version for FPS Wales. The factsheet on eligibility to
join FPS Wales5 has been added to the factsheets tab of the FPS Regulations and Guidance website.
In brief, the factsheet confirms that in order for a person to be eligible for the scheme they have to be
employed as a ‘firefighter’. The regulations provide an interpretation of a ‘firefighter’, and it is for
each FRA to satisfy themselves that those in the scheme are employed within this definition.

TPR data requirements – 2019 scheme return
For the first time in 2018, TPR asked schemes to measure the common and scheme specific data they
hold about their members and report this on the annual scheme return.
The LGA Bluelight team agreed that in order to achieve consistency and allow for benchmarking and
best practice, a standard list of scheme-specific items for FPS should be developed, and issued
informal guidance on data scoring including which data items might be considered.
Rather than produce a definitive list of data elements, we provided a range of suggested items, split
into categories for active, deferred, pensioner, and dependant members. This was based on the GAD
Universal Data Extract and TPR guidelines, subject to feedback from software suppliers and our
knowledge of the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes.
This guidance has now been updated for the 2019 return, with some new items added based on
feedback from administrators and an expanded section on testing data for accuracy as well as
presence. We are pleased to include a matrix of weighting criteria to allow schemes to assess the likely
accuracy of their data and adjust the score accordingly.
Please see the updated guidance at Appendix 3 and spreadsheet at Appendix 4.

3

http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/Eligibilityv3clean.pdf
http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/Eligibilityv3tracked.pdf
5
http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/EligibilityWalesv1.pdf
4

Click here to return to Contents

Page 24

5

Information about measuring data is available on the TPR website:
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/trustees/managing-db-benefits/governance-andadministration/record-keeping/review-your-scheme-data
To assist with completion of the scheme return, TPR have provided the following checklist and
example return:
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/dbscheme-return-checklist.ashx
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/dbscheme-return-example-form.ashx

GAD Fire pension accounting disclosures
GAD currently provide annual pensions accounting disclosures for more than half of all Fire and Police
authorities in England and Wales and are looking to expand their portfolio.
If you are interested in speaking to GAD about the possibilities surrounding your 2019-20 disclosures
more information can be found in the attached flier (Appendix 5) along with contact details.

October query log
The current log of queries and responses is available on the FPS Regulations and Guidance website.
The queries have been anonymised and divided into topics. The log will be updated on a monthly basis
in line with the bulletin release dates.
Queries from earlier months have been grey-shaded to differentiate from new items added in
September.

Other News and Updates
The Queen’s Speech
The Queen’s Speech to Parliament on 14 October confirmed the introduction of a new Pensions
Schemes Bill, which was published on 16 October.
The main elements of the Bill, as stated in the background briefing notes6 to the speech, will provide
a framework for Collective Defined Contribution (CDC) schemes, strengthen TPR’s powers and existing
sanctions, provide a framework to support pensions dashboards, and create new regulations to set
out member rights to a transfer.
The latest news on the progress of the Bill can be followed on the parliament.uk website
https://services.parliament.uk/Bills/2019-20/pensionschemes.html

6

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/839370/
Queen_s_Speech_Lobby_Pack_2019_.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 25

6

Eversheds Sutherland have produced a Speedbrief7 which outlines the provisions of the bill in more
detail.

GAD PSPS newsletter
The Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) has issued the September edition of its Public Service
Pension Schemes newsletter. This is intended to be an informal note to provide regular updates on
what is happening within the PSPS area of GAD and to highlight some current hot topics that schemes
and other department contacts might be interested in.

TPO corporate plan 2019 – 2022
The Pensions Ombudsman (TPO) published their corporate plan on 2 October, outlining their priorities
and strategic aims for 2019 – 2022.
TPO state that the focus of the plan is to ensure that “every dispute can be resolved at the earliest
point, with no loss of quality”. This will include a redesign of the casework function and expansion of
digital solutions, supported by a strengthened governance structure as recommended by the DWP
Tailored Review8.
The full corporate plan can be read at Appendix 6.

HMRC
Contracting-out reconciliation update
The following bulletin, containing important information about the services and support HMRC will
provide now that Scheme Reconciliation Service (SRS) has ended, was published on 4 October 2019.
Countdown bulletin 49
Updates include:
 final SRS outputs
 Scheme Contracted-Out Numbers (SCONs)
 incorrect GMP
 Contribution Equivalent Premiums (CEP)
 raising queries with HMRC

7

https://www.evershedssutherland.com/global/en/what/articles/index.page?ArticleID=en/Pensions/Speedbrief-The-Pension-SchemesBill-was-it-worth-the-wait
8
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-pensions-ombudsman-tailored-review/tailored-review-ofthe-pensions-ombudsman

Click here to return to Contents

Page 26

7

Training and Events
Pensions tax – London – 12 November 2019
We are pleased to invite readers to a pensions tax seminar being held at the LGA offices at 18 Smith
Square, London on Tuesday 12 November 2019, from 10:30 to 15:30.
This conference will allow delegates to hear from various stakeholders on pensions tax for the
Firefighters’ and Police Pension Schemes.
The purpose of the day is to build up a picture of public sector pensions tax and how it is applied. The
morning will cover the technical side of tax i.e. what it is, how is it calculated, what challenges arise,
and then the second part of the day covers how can we move on, help better educate the sector and
improve. The final session of the day will be a question and answer panel session with all of our
speakers.
The event is aimed at FPS practitioners, Fire and Rescue senior management responsible for managing
the pension scheme, LPB chairs and members, along with other professionals with an interest in the
Firefighters’ or Police Pension Scheme
A draft agenda is available via the booking link, however, please note that the programme is subject
to change.
Click here to book your place.

Useful links









The Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory Board
FPS Regulations and Guidance
Khub Firefighters Pensions Discussion Forum
FPS1992 guidance and commentary
The Pensions Regulator Public Service Schemes
The Pensions Ombudsman
HMRC Pensions Tax Manual
LGA pensions website

Contact details
Clair Alcock (Bluelight Senior Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3189
Email: clair.alcock@local.gov.uk
Kevin Courtney (NPCC Pensions Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3202
Email: kevin.courtney@local.gov.uk
Claire Hey (Firefighters’ Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3205
Email: claire.hey@local.gov.uk

Click here to return to Contents

Page 27

8

APPENDIX C

FPS Bulletin 26 – November 2019
Welcome to issue 26 of the Firefighters’ Pensions Schemes bulletin.
If you are looking for information on a certain topic, issue and content indexes are held on the main
bulletin page of the website and are updated following each new issue.
If you have any comments on the contents of this bulletin or suggested items for future issues, please
contact Claire Hey.

Contents
Calendar of events
FPS






Fire and rescue workforce and pensions statistics published
ABS 2019 survey – action required
FPS England - 2020 valuation draft data specifications
Accounting disclosures: Police and Firefighters Pension Schemes 2019/20
November query log

Other News and Updates




TPR governance and administration survey 2019
Pension Schemes Bill - second reading delayed
LGA Pensions Adviser vacancy

HMRC


HMRC newsletters/bulletins

Training and Events


Pensions tax – event summary

Legislation


The Civil Partnership (Opposite-sex Couples) Regulations 2019

Useful links
Contact details

Page 28

Calendar of events
Please see below a calendar of upcoming events relevant to the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. Only
those events which are hyperlinked are currently available to book. If you have any events you would
like to be included in a future bulletin, please contact Claire Hey.
Eastern FPOG

10 December 2019

SAB

9 January 2020 - amended

North East regional FPOG

12 February 2020 – amended

LGA annual Fire conference and exhibition

10-11 March 2020

SAB

19 March 2020

SAB

11 June 2020

SAB

17 September 2020

Firefighters’ Pensions AGM – save the date!

22-23 September 2020

SAB

10 December 2020

FPS
Fire and Rescue workforce and pensions statistics published
The Home Office published workforce and pensions statistics for Fire and Rescue Services (England)
on 31 October1. The pension scheme statistics, covering April 2018 to March 2019, reflect data returns
on income, expenditure and membership submitted by all 45 FRAs in England.
Some key results:







Firefighters’ Pension Scheme expenditure in 2018/19 was around £856 million.
In 2018/19, 81% of expenditure was “recurring outgoing payments” and 18% was
“commutation payments”.
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme income in 2018/19 was around £257 million.
In 2018/19, 53% of income was “employer contributions”, 44% was “employee contributions”
and the remaining 4% comprised transfers, miscellaneous income and ill-health charges.
The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme deficit in 2018/19 was around £599 million.
As at 31 March 2019, the total number of pensioner members was 43,665. Of these, 95% were
members of FPS 1992.

1

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/843566/f
ire-rescue-workforce-pensions-1819-hosb2619.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 29

2

ABS 2019 survey – action required
A little later than anticipated, we are pleased to launch this year’s survey of the ABS process,
developed in collaboration with the SAB Local Pension Board effectiveness committee.
The survey was extended last year to invite administrators to submit responses, and while the 2018
web-based version gave more flexibility to response options, there were issues around the clarity and
wording of the questions, particularly for measuring internal controls, and issuing the same question
set to both FRAs and administrators skewed the results in some areas. The 2018 research report2 was
published in April 2019.
Taking into account feedback and learning from previous years, we have revised the question sets and
have developed separate surveys for the FRA and administrator to complete. We welcome one reply
from each FRA, and for administrators with multiple FRA clients, a completed survey per authority.
To ease the burden on those administrators, a third, shorter version of the survey has been provided,
with the intention that they will complete a full survey for the first FRA and the reduced version for
each subsequent submission.
FRA (employer) survey https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ABS_2019_SURVEY_FRA
Administrator survey for single, or first of multiple FRAs
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ABS_2019_SURVEY_ADMIN
Administrator survey for subsequent multiple FRAs
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ABS_2019_SURVEY_ADMIN_PLUS
We would be grateful for your responses by 10 January 2020. If you require any further information
or clarification on the surveys, please contact claire.hey@local.gov.uk.

FPS England - 2020 valuation draft data specifications
The Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) has issued the draft 2020 valuation data specifications
for FPS England. This has been circulated by email to software suppliers and administrators.
The data specifications are mostly the same as they were for the 2016 valuation, with the one major
addition being the inclusion of extra data requirements for salary and contribution information
between 2015 and 2020 following the McCloud judgement.
As these specifications are in draft GAD welcome any comments from administrators regarding the
contents or structure of the document. Please submit any comments to
bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.
GAD will follow up in the near future with the required data collection spreadsheet and instructions.
A new page has been created in the member-restricted area of www.fpsregs.org to hold confidential
or draft documentation relating to the valuation process http://fpsregs.org/index.php/memberarea/scheme-valuations-restricted. If you require log-in details for the member area, please contact
us on the email address above.

2

http://www.fpsboard.org/images/PDF/Surveys/ABS2018.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 30

3

Accounting disclosures: Police and Firefighters Pension Schemes 2019/20
Have you started thinking about your 31 March 2020 pension accounting disclosures? If not, now is
the time!
Click on the attached flier (Appendix 1) to find out how Hymans Robertson can help you.

November query log
The current log of queries and responses is available on the FPS Regulations and Guidance website.
The queries have been anonymised and divided into topics. The log will be updated on a monthly basis
in line with the bulletin release dates.
Queries from earlier months have been grey-shaded to differentiate from new items added in
October.

Other News and Updates
TPR governance and administration survey 2019
Invitations for the Pension Regulator’s annual Governance and Administration survey were sent out 6
November 2019 with a deadline of 29 November 2019. An email was sent to Local Pension Board
chairs to remind them to liaise with their scheme manager to ensure completion within the deadline.
Before completing the survey, FRAs should ensure they are familiar with the recent guidance
published on the six key processes3 used by TPR to measure public sector performance under and our
guidance on data scoring to measure accuracy4. The TPR reports from previous surveys can be found
on our dedicated webpage http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/legal-landscape/the-pensionsregulator.

Pension Schemes Bill – second reading delayed
In FPS Bulletin 25 – October 2019, we reported on the Queen’s Speech confirming that a new Pension
Schemes Bill would be introduced to strengthen TPR’s powers, provide a framework to support
pensions dashboards and introduce regulations covering the right to a pension transfer.
The first reading of the Bill took place on 15 October 2019 and the second reading of the Bill was
scheduled to take place on 30 October 2019. However, this was delayed with no replacement date
set, as the UK moves towards a general election on 12 December 2019.

LGA Pensions Adviser vacancy
The LGA is recruiting for a pensions adviser to lead on the development and implementation of an
extended service to LGPS Scotland. It is a full-time role that can be either office (London) or home
based. The salary scale ranges from £41,675 to £47,736 (plus London weighting where appropriate).
The closing date for applications is 3 January 2020; interviews will be held on 13/14 January 2020. For
more information or to discuss this opportunity please contact Jeff Houston (07786 681 936) or
Lorraine Bennett (07766 252847).
3
4

http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/TPR-6-key-processes.v1.pdf
http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/TPR-data-scoring-2019-clean.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 31

4

HMRC
HMRC newsletters/bulletins
HMRC have published pension schemes newsletters 114 and 115 containing important updates and
guidance on pension schemes. The following issues are covered:

Pension schemes newsletter 114 – 30 October 2019: Registration statistics| Pension flexibility
statistics | Pension scheme administration - moving pension recipients from one payroll to
another| Relief at source| Guaranteed Minimum Pension Equalisation| Annual allowance
scheme pays GOV.UK guidance|



Pension schemes newsletter 115 – 26 November 2019: Lifetime allowance and the 2019 to
2020 event report| Managing Pensions Schemes service - giving access to Government
Gateway administrators and assistants| Managing Pension Schemes service - pension
practitioner IDs| Relief at source - notification of residency status report for 2020 to 2021|
Annual allowance - members declaring their annual allowance charge on their Self Assessment
tax return|

HMRC have published a new guide about paying the AA tax charge for pension scheme members. The
guide entitled ‘who must pay the pensions annual allowance tax charge' has information about
‘mandatory’ and ‘voluntary’ scheme pays and provides links for members on declaring their AA charge
on their self-assessment return.
Authorities are asked to remind those members who have exceeded their annual allowance for
2018/19 and who do not have sufficient unused annual allowance to carry forward to cover the excess,
that they must declare this on their Self-Assessment tax return, even if the FRA is paying the tax
charge.

Training and Events
Pensions tax – event summary
It was another full house at Smith Square on 12 November for the LGA Bluelight team’s final event of
the year: pensions tax in the Firefighters’ and Police schemes.
In an unfortunate turn of events, Malcolm Eastwood was unable to chair the day due to ill-health and
was ably substituted by Andy Hopkinson, DCFO at Bedfordshire FRS. We would like to take this
opportunity to pass on the good wishes of the FPS community to Malcolm for a full and speedy
recovery.
Andy remained at the lectern to deliver the first session of the day; an update on the work of the
Public Service Pensions Alliance, which brings together pension experts from across the public sector,
and is currently investigating options to help members better manage their tax consequences by
improving freedom and flexibilities, and what evidence might be needed to build a robust business
case.
Andy was followed by the ever-popular Annemarie Allen from Barnett Waddingham, with a look at
the ins and outs of the annual and lifetime allowance.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 32

5

Following a short break, the LGA’s very own Clair Alcock delivered back to back sessions on
unauthorised payments, including the how and why, and scheme pays, including the who and when.
In an afternoon dedicated to next steps, and in the tricky after-lunch slot, Laura Bowler of Pen-gage
kept delegates entertained with a fascinating look at engagement and communication in relation to
pensions tax: the good, the bad, and the ugly…

Craig Moran of First Actuarial then picked up the theme from Andy’s earlier session with a look at the
landscape across public service schemes, the work of the Scheme Advisory Board around the cost-cap
breach, and what evidence is needed to build a case for change.
The final session of the day allowed the audience to direct their burning questions (no pun intended)
to our panel of experts. And that’s a wrap for 2019. See you all again in 2020!
The complete presentation slide decks from the event are available here5. Please note that
Annemarie’s slides are available to delegates of the session only.
To view the full conference in pictures, visit our @LGAWorkforce twitter feed, #LGAfirepensions

5

http://www.fpsboard.org/images/PDF/Events/Pensions-Tax/Pensions-tax-slide-deck-121119.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 33

6

Legislation
NISR

Reference Title

2019/206

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2019

SI

Reference Title

2019/1425
2019/1433
2019/1449

The Finance Act 2004 (Specified Pension Schemes) Order 2019
The Occupational Pensions (Revaluation) Order 2019
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2019

SSI

Reference Title

2019/357
2019/358
2019/380

The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2019
The Firefighters’ Pension Schemes (Scotland) Amendment Order 2019
The Police Pensions Amendment (Increased Pension Entitlement) (Scotland)
Regulations 2019
The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme Amendment (Increased Pension Entitlement)
(Scotland) Order 2019
The Firefighters’ Pension and Compensation Schemes (Amendment) (Scotland)
Order 2019

2019/381
2019/382

The Civil Partnership (Opposite-sex Couples) Regulations 2019 [SI 2019/1458]
On 5 November 2019 the Government made the Civil Partnership (Opposite-sex Couples) Regulations
2019 [SI 2019/1458] which are effective from 2 December 2019. This means that an opposite-sex
couple can give notice of a proposed civil partnership on 2 December 2019 after which the 28 day
waiting period will commence (section 11 of The Civil Partnership Act 2004). This means an opposite
sex civil partnership registration can take place from 31 December 2019.
These regulations were made in response to the Government consultation published on 10 July 2019,
which proposed changing the law to allow opposite-sex couples to form civil partnerships (section 2
of the Civil Partnerships, Marriages and Deaths (Registration etc) Act 2019).
Also amended is section 37 of the Marriage (Same Sex Couples) Act 2013. This limits the conversion
of a civil partnership into a marriage, to couples in same sex civil partnerships only. The Government
has not made provisions to allow a marriage to be converted into a civil partnership.

Useful links









The Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory Board
FPS Regulations and Guidance
Khub Firefighters Pensions Discussion Forum
FPS1992 guidance and commentary
The Pensions Regulator Public Service Schemes
The Pensions Ombudsman
HMRC Pensions Tax Manual
LGA pensions website

Click here to return to Contents

Page 34

7

Contact details
Clair Alcock (Bluelight Senior Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3189
Email: clair.alcock@local.gov.uk
Kevin Courtney (NPCC Pensions Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3202
Email: kevin.courtney@local.gov.uk
Claire Hey (Firefighters’ Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3205
Email: claire.hey@local.gov.uk

Click here to return to Contents

Page 35

8

APPENDIX D

FPS Bulletin 27 – December 2019
Welcome to issue 27 of the Firefighters’ Pensions Schemes bulletin.
If you are looking for information on a certain topic, issue and content indexes are held on the main
bulletin page of the website and are updated following each new issue.
May we take this opportunity to wish you all a very merry Christmas and happy New Year. Thank you
for your help and support during 2019.

© Eunice Heaney 2019
If you have any comments on the contents of this bulletin or suggested items for future issues, please
contact Claire Hey.

Page 36

Contents
Calendar of events
FPS




Update on transitional protections remedy (Sargeant)
Firefighters' Pension Schemes (England) - Factor Guidance Notes
December query log

FPS England SAB Updates




A end of year message from the Chair
ABS 2019 survey – reminder of action required
TPR data requirements – 2019 scheme return: update

Other News and Updates


Pension Schemes Bill reinstated

Training and Events


2019 facts and figures

Useful links
Contact details

Click here to return to Contents

Page 37

2

Calendar of events
Please see below a calendar of upcoming events relevant to the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. Only
those events which are hyperlinked are currently available to book. If you have any events you would
like to be included in a future bulletin, please contact Claire Hey.
SAB

9 January 2020 - amended

Firefighter Pensions Technical Community

31 January 2020

Fire Communications Working Group

4 February 2020

North East regional FPOG

12 February 2020 – amended

Midlands regional FPOG

18 February 2020

Eastern regional FPOG

25 February 2020

SAB LPB effectiveness committee

5 March 2020

LGA annual Fire conference and exhibition

10-11 March 2020

SAB

19 March 2020

SAB

11 June 2020

SAB

17 September 2020

Firefighters’ Pensions AGM – save the date!

22-23 September 2020

SAB

10 December 2020

FPS
Update on transitional protections remedy (Sargeant)
As readers are no doubt aware, on 18 December 2019, the Employment Tribunal made an interim
order on the firefighters’ transitional protections claims. An employer’s circular from the National
Employers has been sent to FRAs informing of the detail which is available here.
What the actual order does for claimants is to treat them as satisfying the age criteria regardless of
their actual age as long as they meet the other criteria, which was to have been in the scheme at 31
March 2012 and 31 March 2015.
For example for claimants, schedule 2, paragraph 12 should now read as automatically satisfying
paragraph c regardless of their actual age
(2) This sub-paragraph applies if—
(a)P was an active member of the 1992 Scheme or an active member, or eligible to be an active
member, of the NFPS on the scheme closing date;

Click here to return to Contents

Page 38

3

(b)P was an active member of the 1992 Scheme or an active member, or eligible to be an active
member, of the NFPS on 31st March 2012; and
(c)if P is an active member of the 1992 Scheme, P would, unless P dies, reach normal pension age
under the 1992 Scheme or if P is an active member or eligible to be an active member of the NFPS,
normal pension age under the NFPS on or before the 1st April 2022
We understand that firefighters will be eager to understand what this means for them and no doubt
administrators and FRAs will be receiving queries. Home Office have provided a factsheet (Appendix
1) that can be issued to members and we have provided some suggested text below in order to
respond to those queries:
“We are aware of the interim declaration made by the Employment Tribunal that claimants
represented in the Sargeant legal case are entitled to be treated as if they remained in the
Firefighters Pension Scheme 1992 (FPS 1992). In order to comply with the Tribunal’s order
FRAs will need further direction from Government on the practical steps to enable
implementation and we await that direction, albeit the Home Office have since issued a
factsheet.
In the meantime to enable us to prioritise urgent cases, if you believe you are a claimant and
you have an immediate retirement event; i.e. you are going through or have gone through an
ill-health retirement or you wish to retire from the scheme with immediate effect and meet
the eligibility requirements of being over 50 with 25 years’ service (incudes service in the
2015 Scheme) please contact [insert relevant contact details] with confirmation of your
status as a claimant and details of your retirement claim.
The order does not specify treatment of non-claimants at this time, however Government
have confirmed their intent that non-claimants in the same legal and factual position as
claimants intends to extend the same treatment to all members of the public service pension
schemes, including the Firefighters’ scheme, (whether claimants or not) who are in the same
legal and factual position as the claimants. If you are a non-claimant with a similar
immediate retirement event to claimants, please contact us. “
However, there are some steps that FRAs can take in the meantime to identify members with relevant
service, whether claimants or non-claimants so that once proposals are finalised they are in a position
to act.


Current Ill-health cases with the IQMP
o Ask the IQMP to assess the applicant under both the 1992 and 2015 scheme terms.1



Retrospective Ill-Health applications since 1 April 2015
o Identify these into one of the below categories
1. Assessed for IQMP under 2015 scheme terms and did not meet tier 1, therefore no
ill-health pension is in payment.
o The authority may want to consider whether it is appropriate to request an
IQMP assessment under the 1992 terms, if the employer had not already
asked the IQMP to assess under both schemes.

1

Ill-Health certificates are available here - http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/member-area/ill-health-andinjury

Click here to return to Contents

Page 39

4

2. Assessed for IQMP under 2015 terms and met tier 1 requirements but not tier 2,
therefore lower tier currently in payment only
o The authority may want to consider whether it is appropriate to request an
IQMP higher tier assessment on ability to perform regular employment under
the 1992 terms, if the employer had not already asked the IQMP to assess
under both schemes
3. Assessed for IQMP under 2015 terms and awarded higher tier
o A further IQMP assessment will not be necessary, however in some cases the
enhancement paid for higher tier in the 2015 scheme will enhance the overall
value of the pension being paid (meaning the pension paid under the 2015
terms is more than then pension that would be paid under the 1992 terms),
however a lump sum paid under the 1992 scheme would be higher than that
paid under the 2015 scheme. The authority may consider it appropriate to
ask their administrator to provide a calculation of the benefits that might be
provided under the 1992 terms for comparison purposes.


Identify members that may have had or be eligible for immediate retirement2, ie those
members who are age 50 with over 25 years of service.



Identify members who may under the current scheme rules taper into the 2015 scheme from
January 2020

Updates will be provided by email and via the monthly bulletins as new information or direction is
received.

Firefighters' Pension Schemes (England) - Factor Guidance Notes
HM Treasury reduced the SCAPE discount rate from 2.8% to 2.4%pa above CPI from 1 April 2019. As a
result of the change, the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) undertook a factor review for the
Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. The revised factors were provided by email to FRAs, during 2018 -2019.
GAD has now produced guidance notes and example calculations to reflect the revised factors. These
are provided below.












FPS 1992 and FPS 2006 CPD APB - factors and guidance
FPS 2015 Age additions and assumed age additions - factors and guidance
FPS 2015 Club Transfer guidance (supplement to the Club Memorandum)
FPS 2006 Early retirement - factors and guidance
FPS 2015 Early payment reductions - factors and guidance
FPS 2006 Purchase of increased benefits - factors and guidance
FPS 2015 Purchase of Additional Pension - factors and guidance
FPS 1992 Tax charge debits - factors and guidance
FPS 2006 Tax charge debits - factors and guidance
FPS 2015 AA charges: scheme pays offsets - factors and guidance
FPS 2015 LTA pension debit - factors and guidance

All factor tables and guidance notes can be found on our website at http://fpsregs.org/index.php/gadguidance.

2

http://www.fpsregs.org/images/admin/RetirementFPS2015v1.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 40

5

Please note: In line with best practice and in order to make sure that factors are being used as
intended and the instructions are fit for purpose, we suggest that some example calculations are
sent to GAD for review.
We have received a number of queries regarding the guidance, which have been forwarded to the
Home Office for review. Please submit any comments to bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

December query log
The current log of queries and responses is available on the FPS Regulations and Guidance website.
The queries have been anonymised and divided into topics. The log will be updated on a monthly basis
in line with the bulletin release dates.
Queries from earlier months have been grey-shaded to differentiate from new items added in
November.

FPS (England) SAB Updates
A end of year message from the Chair
“Dear Friends & Colleagues,
Christmas is traditionally a Family Time and it is my pleasure to send to all of you within what I fondly
refer to as my Fire Pensions Family my personal 'Festive Best Wishes' for Christmas, the New Year and
2020.
It doesn't feel like it is 12 months ago that I sat down to write last year’s Festive Message to you
all....and yet, here we are again, frantically getting ready for the "Big Day", and the closure of another
busy year.
Christmas is generally a time for reflection and when I look back over the year, we have seen so much
happening within the Fire Pensions domain, much of which has involved the majority of you reading
this message in one way or another…”
Read more from Malcolm Eastwood, chair of the Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory
Board at Appendix 2.

ABS 2019 survey – reminder of action required
Many thanks to colleagues who have been able to submit a response to this year’s survey of the ABS
process, developed in collaboration with the SAB Local Pension Board effectiveness committee. We
encourage those who have not yet responded to take the opportunity to do so, so that the research
report fully reflects the national picture.
Taking into account feedback and learning from previous years, we have revised the question sets and
have developed separate surveys for the FRA and administrator to complete. We welcome one reply
from each FRA, and for administrators with multiple FRA clients, a completed survey per authority.
To ease the burden on those administrators, a third, shorter version of the survey has been provided,
with the intention that they will complete a full survey for the first FRA and the reduced version for
each subsequent submission.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 41

6

FRA (employer) survey https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ABS_2019_SURVEY_FRA
Administrator survey for single, or first of multiple FRAs
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ABS_2019_SURVEY_ADMIN
Administrator survey for subsequent multiple FRAs
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/ABS_2019_SURVEY_ADMIN_PLUS
An Excel version of the question set can be provided on request, and we can also export submissions
on an individual basis following the closing date and provide FRAs with their own data for discussion
at Local Pension Board meetings if required.
Please note that the closing date has been brought forward to 6 January 2020, as our paid Survey
Monkey plan expires on this date. If you require any further information or clarification on the surveys,
please contact claire.hey@local.gov.uk.

TPR data requirements – 2019 scheme return: update
In FPS Bulletin 25 – October 2019 we included updated guidance for completing The Pension Regulator
(TPR) scheme return, with some new scheme specific items added and an expanded section on testing
data for accuracy.
http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/TPR-data-scoring-2019-clean.pdf
http://fpsregs.org/images/admin/Data-score-weighting.xlsx
It appears that some confusion has arisen regarding the status of the document which we had initially
classified as informal guidance, and therefore some parties had not recognised that this would form
the basis of a standard, fire-specific, extract. We have now changed the category of the document
from “information” to “advice” and would like to make clear that we consider this a final standard
version for suppliers and authorities to take account of.
TPR have noted that, in their opinion, the role of the SAB to advise scheme managers and pension
boards carries sufficient weight for a supplier to pay attention to it.

Other News and Updates
Pension Schemes Bill reinstated
Following the general election on 12 December 2019, the Queen’s Speech setting out the
government’s policies3 has confirmed that the Pension Schemes Bill has been reintroduced to:



“Support pension saving in the 21st century, putting protection of people’s pensions at its
heart.
Create a legislative framework for the introduction of pensions dashboards to allow people to
access their information from most pensions schemes in one place online for the first time.”

3

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/853886/
Queen_s_Speech_December_2019_-_background_briefing_notes.pdf [Page 56]

Click here to return to Contents

Page 42

7

The first reading of the Bill took place on 15 October 2019 and the second reading of the Bill was
scheduled to take place on 30 October 2019. However, this was delayed due to the election.

Training and Events
2019 facts and figures
We’ve been out on the road again in 2019, attending meetings and providing training to FRAs and
LPBs; including 16 regional Fire Pension Officer group meetings and 22 local or regional training
sessions for boards and scheme managers. Some of the many HQs we’ve visited this year are pictured
below. See if you can spot yours!

In addition to our regional engagements, we’ve held a six national training events at the LGA offices
in London, including several joint sessions with colleagues from the Police scheme, the annual twoday AGM and a wrap-up session for LPB members.
Information about our national events can be found on our Events page.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 43

8

Back at base (and beyond), we have facilitated four meetings of the SAB, six SAB committee meetings,
three communications group and three technical group meetings. In addition, we are regular visitors
to the devolved SAB meetings to provide an overview of issues arising in England, and represent FPS
interests at sector specific forums.
We look forward to offering an exciting and varied programme of events in 2020 based on the
outcomes of our training survey4, and as ever, are happy to tailor bespoke sessions for local and
regional groups. For information, please contact us at bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

Useful links









The Firefighters’ Pensions (England) Scheme Advisory Board
FPS Regulations and Guidance
Khub Firefighters Pensions Discussion Forum
FPS1992 guidance and commentary
The Pensions Regulator Public Service Schemes
The Pensions Ombudsman
HMRC Pensions Tax Manual
LGA pensions website

Contact details
Clair Alcock (Senior Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3189
Email: clair.alcock@local.gov.uk
Kevin Courtney (NPCC Pensions Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3202
Email: kevin.courtney@local.gov.uk
Claire Hey (Firefighters’ Pension Adviser)
Telephone: 020 7664 3205
Email: claire.hey@local.gov.uk

Copyright
Copyright remains with Local Government Association (LGA). This bulletin may be reproduced without
the prior permission of LGA provided it is not used for commercial gain, the source is acknowledged
and, if regulations are reproduced, the Crown Copyright Policy Guidance issued by HMSO is adhered
to.

4

http://www.fpsboard.org/images/PDF/Surveys/Training2019.pdf

Click here to return to Contents

Page 44

9

Disclaimer
The information contained in this bulletin has been prepared by the Bluelight Pensions team, part of
the Local Government Association (LGA). It represents the views of the team and should not be treated
as a complete and authoritative statement of the law. Readers may wish, or will need, to take their
own legal advice on the interpretation of any particular piece of legislation. No responsibility
whatsoever will be assumed by the LGA for any direct or consequential loss, financial or otherwise,
damage or inconvenience, or any other obligation or liability incurred by readers relying on
information contained in this bulletin.
Whilst every attempt is made to ensure the accuracy of the bulletin, it would be helpful if readers
could bring any perceived errors or omissions to the attention of the Bluelight team by emailing
bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk.

Click here to return to Contents

Page 45

10

APPENDIX E

Information

Firefighters’ Pension Schemes Management
and Governance
Introduction
The purpose of this document is to highlight the roles of the stakeholders within the
management and governance of the England Firefighters’ Pension Schemes (FPS), and the
guidance that is available to ensure good governance and management of the scheme. It is
not a comprehensive guide to the roles and responsibilities of the bodies that make up the
community.
Readers should note that while there are similarities between the FPS regulations in Wales,
Scotland and Northern Ireland, there are some different arrangements for the management
and governance of the devolved schemes.

Stakeholders
The Scheme has a number of key stakeholders all playing a role in its effective administration
including Fire and Rescue Authorities (FRAs), both as employers and scheme managers, the
Local Government Association (LGA), administrators, Local Pension Boards (LPBs), Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB), and the Home Office as Responsible Authority.

 Scheme managers
The scheme manager is defined under rule 3 and 4 of the 2014 regulations1 as being the Fire
and Rescue Authority as determined under section 1 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act
2004
The scheme manager is responsible for managing and administering the Firefighters’ Pension
Scheme 2015 and any statutory pension scheme that is connected with it.

1

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/2848/regulation/4/made

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 46

1

If, under statutory amendment, the functions of the FRA are transferred to the mayor’s office
or the Police and Crime Commissioner, becoming a Police and Fire Crime Commissioner
(PFCC), the mayor’s office or PFCC will become the scheme manager.
The Scheme has 45 scheme managers as summarised in the table below:
Type of Fire and Rescue Service
County Council
Combined Fire and Rescue Authorities
Combined Authority (Mayoral)
Police and Fire Crime Commissioners
Metropolitan Fire and Rescue Authorities
London Fire Commissioner
Unitary Authority

Number
4
19
1
4
5
1
11

A list of FRAs in England can be found here2
The scheme manager has responsibility for managing and administering the FPS including:


Calculation and payment of benefits



Decisions and discretions



Disclosure of information



Record keeping



Internal controls



Internal Dispute Resolution



Reporting breaches of law



Statements, reports and accounts

 Scheme manager delegation
The scheme regulations allow for the scheme manager function to be delegated under rule 5
of the 2014 regulations3, to such persons or employees of such person as may be authorised
in that behalf by the scheme manager.
However, the use and consistency of that delegation varies across FRAs and can often
depend on the governance structure in force.
A factsheet4 is available on the role and delegation of scheme manager. The delegated
scheme manager should sit within the senior management team of the Fire and Rescue
Service (FRS)

2

http://www.fpsregs.org/images/admin/AdminApr2019.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/2848/regulation/5/made
4
http://www.fpsregs.org/images/admin/Schememanagerv1.pdf
3

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 47

2

 Local Government Association (LGA)
The LGA is the national voice of local government. It is a politically-led, cross party
membership organisation, representing councils from England and Wales, fire authorities and
other public sector employers
The role of the LGA is to support, promote and improve local government, and raise national
awareness of the work of public sector employees. In this regard LGA works across the sector
in various capacities such as policy, strategy, improvement and workforce.
The pensions team support employers with their responsibilities in the various public sector
pension schemes, such as Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), Fire, Police, and
Teachers pensions. The Fire and Police schemes are supported by the ‘Bluelight’ team within
the LGA pensions team.
For the FPS, this service has been developed to bring together the management, governance,
and administration of the FPS to ensure that FRAs and their stakeholders are provided with
the necessary specialist advice, communication materials, training and information to enable
them to discharge their duties and achieve excellent standards in all areas related to the above
pension schemes and compensation scheme matters. The service includes:












A library of guides and sample documents5, including technical notes on the FPS and
related matters
A library of factsheets6 for stakeholders within the FPS
A monthly bulletin7 highlighting issues affecting the FPS
Technical support8, answering technical queries on the FPS regulations and their effect
An online library9 of statutory guidance and other related legislation
Representing the interests of FPS stakeholders at a national level with government
and other bodies, such as Fire Services Management Committee (FSMC), NFCC
Finance Committee, the Pensions Regulator (TPR) and the Pensions Ombudsman
(TPO)
Providing a secretariat service for the Firefighters (England) Pension Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB)
A programme of pensions training for FPS pension practitioners, scheme managers
and their delegated representatives and LPBs
Facilitation of a network of forums and groups to share best practice and provide peer
support, these are:
o

Regional Fire Pension officer groups (FPOGs)

FPOGs provide an opportunity for those with responsibility for managing the
pension scheme, i.e. scheme managers and their delegated representatives, and
pension administrators to meet on a regular basis to discuss current issues and
share best practice.

5

http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/administration-resources/guides-and-sample-documents
http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/administration-resources/factsheets
7
http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/bulletins-and-circulars/bulletins
8
http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/administration-resources/technical-queries
9
http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/regulations
6

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 48

3

There are six regional FPOGs
Eastern
Midlands
North West

South Eastern
South West
North East

Further details and minutes from these groups can be found on the password
restricted page here10.
o

Technical Group

The purpose of the Firefighter Pensions Technical Community is to work together
with the Home Office, LGA, and other fire service stakeholders to enable the
effective facilitation of the administration of the FPS and is set out in the terms of
reference11.
The minutes and papers from the technical group can be found on the password
restricted page here12.
o

Fire Communications Working Group

The Fire Communications Working Group (FCWG) is a collaborative forum
attended on a quarterly basis by fire service and pension administration
professionals who are involved in communicating the FPS benefits.
The FCWG provides the opportunity for fire services to share knowledge and
experience in the field of communications and to assist the LGA fire team in the
development and provision of centrally devised communications resources. The
Terms of Reference13 gives more information about the background and
membership of the group.
The minutes and papers from the communications group can be found on the
password restricted page here14.

10

http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/member-area/regional-fire-pension-officer-groups
http://www.fpsregs.org/images/Tech/TORv1.pdf
12
http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/member-area/firefighters-technical-community
13
http://www.fpsregs.org/images/FCWG/TOR070519.pdf
14
http://www.fpsregs.org/index.php/member-area/fire-communications-working-group
11

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 49

4

 Administrators
Each FRA can appoint an administrator to run the day to day administration of their pension
scheme, the FPS regulations do not confer any legislative responsibilities on the administrator,
which all remain the liability of the scheme manager.
There are currently 19 administrators including third party providers and in-house
administration teams working with English FRAs.
The precise details of their role will depend upon the contractual arrangements where
administration is carried out by a third party provider, but will generally include paying
pensions, issuing annual benefit statements and other aspects of the day to day running of
the scheme.
Administrators of the scheme are sometimes also the administering authority for the LGPS
scheme, and therefore the scheme manager for the LGPS. This can cause confusion with
their role of administrator with the FPS, because unlike the LGPS they do not have any
legislative responsibilities under the regulations.
A list of FRAs and their administrators can be found here15.

 Local Pension Boards (LPBs)
The requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act (PSPA) 2013 governance provisions16
were implemented by the Firefighter Pension Scheme (Amendment)(Governance)
Regulations 201517 and brought into being LPBs.
The LPB’s role is to "assist" the scheme manager18 to secure compliance with the regulations,
any other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the scheme, and any
requirements imposed by TPR in relation to the scheme.
The board also assists the scheme manager to ensure the effective and efficient governance
and administration of the scheme.
Where available the terms of reference of each LPB can be found under the ‘Local Pension
Board’ tab of www.fpsboard.org19

15

http://www.fpsregs.org/images/admin/AdminApr2019.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/25/crossheading/governance
17
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/465/regulation/4/made
18
http://www.fpsregs.org/images/admin/Schememanagerv1.pdf
19
http://www.fpsboard.org/index.php/local-pension-boards
16

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 50

5

 Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)
The PSPA 2013 and Firefighter Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations
201520 also bought into being the SAB.
The function of the SAB is to provide advice as requested by the Secretary of State on the
desirability of making changes to the Scheme and also to provide advice to the Scheme
Managers and Local Pension Boards in relation to the effective and efficient administration
and management of the Scheme.
To support the SAB in its delivery of its work plan, the SAB has three committees21




Cost-effectiveness
Local Pension Board Effectiveness
Administration and Benchmarking

The membership profile and terms of reference for the SAB is available to view on the board
website22.

 The Pensions Regulator (TPR)
The PSPA 2013 gave regulatory oversight to TPR23.
TPR is a public body established by the Pensions Act 200424 to make sure that pension
schemes within the UK are run properly and can provide secure benefits for their members
upon retirement. TPR has powers to "educate, enable, and enforce", and is responsible for
promoting robust scheme governance. The Regulator is sponsored by the Department for
Work and Pensions (DWP).
TPR published the code of practice 1425 for public sector pension schemes to abide by.

 Responsible Authority
The Responsible Authority for the management of the FPS is the Home Office taking over
from what is now the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in
January 2016.
The Home Office makes the scheme regulations, which will specify the scheme manager and
the matters for which the LPB is responsible.

20

http://fpsboard.org/index.php/about-the-board
http://www.fpsboard.org/index.php/board-committees
22
http://www.fpsboard.org/index.php
23
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/25/schedule/4
24
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/35/contents
25
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/code-14-publicservice.ashx
21

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 51

6

Guidance and support
There is a range of guidance and training available to stakeholders of the FPS, the below
highlights a range of guidance relevant for LPBs and scheme managers in their roles of
managing and governing the scheme.

 Training


Free Training
Under the SAB levy each FRA is entitled to a free training session on its management
and governance arrangements. The training is provided by LGA and an example is
available here26.



‘Wrap up’ training
An annual session27 is offered to new members of boards who may not have had an
opportunity to attend full board training.



Topical workshops
Annual workshops are run across a selection of different technical topics, to allow best
practice sharing and open discussion.



Conferences
o An annual conference with a specific focus on data, brings together a host of
industry experts to reflect on data issues and its importance in running pension
schemes.
o

An annual governance conference is run each year in May with the Regulator
attending to highlight preliminary results of the TPR admin and governance
survey.

o

The annual LGA Fire Pensions conference is a two day event which runs in
September each year. This brings together the various stakeholders of the
scheme to network and provides informative updates. The first day of the AGM
is always devoted to governance and allows a networking session for chairs of
boards to network with their peers.



Details of all events along with the presentation slide decks are available on the event
page28



A survey of the Bluelight team’s current and future training provision was carried out
in 2019. The research report can be accessed here29

26

http://www.fpsboard.org/index.php/local-pension-boards/training
Scheme Advisory Board Events - http://www.fpsboard.org/index.php/events
28
http://www.fpsboard.org/index.php/events
29
http://www.fpsboard.org/images/PDF/Surveys/Training2019.pdf
27

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 52

7

 Information and guidance


The ‘Local Pension Board’ tab within www.fpsboard.org has three dropdown menus
containing resources and guidance and best practice for pension boards.



A breach assessment template30 is provided to give guidance on assessing, recording
and reporting breaches of law.



The template terms of reference31 for boards re-asserts that quarterly meetings are
best practice and that the term of office should be as a minimum longer than twelve
months. The illustrative scheme year cycle32 encourages quarterly meetings.



From 2018 TPR have required schemes to provide a data score in their annual scheme
return. A list of illustrative data requirements33 for common and scheme specific data
scores for the FPS were published in August 2018.

 Resources and best practice


The SAB surveyed LPBs during November and December 2017 and published the
results34 in February 2018 along with the SAB recommendations during 2018.



The monthly bulletin index35 under the tab ‘local pension board’ contains all the
references to LPBs within the bulletins.



The SAB Local Pension Board effectiveness committee36 meets quarterly to determine
what further guidance might be developed to help pension boards.



There are two comprehensive websites available www.fpsregs.org and
www.fpsboard.org the third and final website www.fpsmember.org is expected to go
live early next year.

30

http://www.fpsboard.org/images/LPB/Resources/Breachassessment210119.docx
http://www.fpsboard.org/images/LPB/TOR/DraftLPBTORJune19clean.docx
32
http://www.fpsboard.org/images/LPB/Resources/Schemeyear.pdf
33
http://www.fpsregs.org/images/admin/TPRdatascoring0818.pdf
31

34

http://www.fpsboard.org/images/PDF/Bulletin6/Appendix3.pdf

35

http://www.fpsboard.org/images/PDF/TopicsAug19.pdf
http://www.fpsboard.org/index.php/board-committees/local-pension-board-effectiveness

36

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 53

8

This factsheet has been prepared by LGA to give some guidance on the rules of the pension
scheme using the regulations as they stand at September 2019, however they should be
used only as an informal view of the interpretation of the firefighters' pension scheme as
only a court can provide a definitive interpretation of legislation. This factsheet should not
be interpreted as legal advice
Please address any queries on the content of this factsheet to
bluelight.pensions@local.gov.uk

September 2019

FPS Management and Governance v1 06.09.2019

Page 54

9

Agenda Item 8

Purpose: Noted
Date 7 FEBRUARY 2020
Title FIRE PENSION BOARD STATUS REPORT & RISK REVIEW
Report of Chief Finance Officer
SUMMARY
1.

This report provides an update on the development of key items.

2.

This report, together with attachments, provides the framework for this meeting
agenda.

STATUTORY REPORTING
3.

Each year every active member’s pension is tested against the standard
HMRC Annual Allowance; for 2018/19, this was set at £40,000. Where a
member exceeds the standard Annual Allowance then they must be sent a
Pension Savings Statement by 6 October following the year end.

4.

There were 18 Pension Saving Statements issued to members of the Fire
Pension Schemes for 2018/19 and of those, seven had taxable excesses.

5.

All bar one of the seven members fall under the Mandatory Scheme Pays
option and therefore members have until 31 July 2020 to elect to use Scheme
Pays if they so wish.

6.

For the remaining one member, they are unable to use Voluntary Scheme Pays
as their tax charge will be below the threshold of £1,000 and therefore they will
have to pay the charge directly to HMRC themselves.

IDRPs & BREACHES
7.

In August 2019 there was an IDRP Stage One raised in relation to Fire
pensions and the administration by Hampshire Pension Fund.

8.

The member had suffered a series of errors, mistakes and delays with the
calculation of both a Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) and their final

Page 55

pension benefits which included a temporary promotion and a split pension
calculation.
9.

The IDRP Stage 1 complaint was upheld.

10. There are now processes that have been put in place to ensure that we capture
those firefighters that are impacted by either temporary promotion or split
pensions.

THE PENSION REGULATOR RETURNS
11. In November each year there are several surveys that need to be completed
for The Pension Regulator (TPR).
TPR PENSION ADMINISTRATION & GOVERNANCE SURVEY
12. This survey related to the 2015 Fire Pension Scheme only. The Employer
Pension Manager sent a copy of the survey to all Board Members asking for
feedback.
13. The survey covers a range of subjects covering administration and
governance. The survey was submitted by the deadline and the details can be
found in APPENDIX A.
TPR SCHEME RETURNS
14. TPR send a survey for each scheme. Along with confirming contact details and
Board membership, the surveys also ask for membership numbers and data
scores for both common and conditional data.
15. Common data is personal data and include items such as name, address, date
of birth etc. Conditional data is scheme specific and nationally there is no
agreed definitive list only that it should include all data that is necessary to
process pensions.
16. TPR introduced the data scoring in 2018 and Hampshire Pension Services
used an amalgamation of reports to produce proxy data scores. These reports
were based on the data needed for the valuation.
17. During 2019, Hampshire Pension Services purchased a tool called Data
Analysis Reporting Tool (DART). This has enabled them to produce a more
accurate score as DART is a more thorough and robust system to analyse and
check the presence and validity of the data.
18. The full surveys can be found in APPENDIX B, C & D. There is also a summary
of the membership numbers and data scores in APPENDIX E.

Page 56

19. The Pension Board will note from the summary in APPENDIX E, that the data
scores for 2019 are lower than for 2018. However, the Board should note that
the 2018 schemes were proxy scores and the 2019 scores now provide a more
accurate baseline.
20. The Board should be reassured to know that Hampshire Pension Services
have put in place a data improvement plan for Fire pension records. The plan
can be found in APPENDIX F.
21. One of the largest areas of missing data is for addresses on deferred records.
Hampshire Pension Services intend to use Target, a tracing company that they
currently use, to provide an initial report; the cost for this would be £1 for each
search. The initial report would provide us with details of whether they have a
high match, a good match or no match.
22. A high match is where there is a high-grade link to the original address and
lots of recent activity there. Target will write out a letter letting the member
know that they have found their new address and will be updating their records
in the next 7 days. The cost for this is £1.59 per record.
23. A good match is where there is a lower grade link to the original address along
with name and date of birth. Target will write up to three times to these
members at the new address, inviting them to call in where they will be taken
through additional levels of security before confirming any address updates.
Target will then provide a list of verified addresses that can be updated. The
cost for this is £4.95 per record.
24. Where there is no match, or a high or good match turns out to be incorrect,
then Target will carry out a full trace. This is a manual investigation to find and
verify a new address for a member. The cost for this is £20 per record on a no
trace no fee basis.
25. Hampshire Pension Services are proposing that the initial report is requested
which will then identify how many fall into each match category. The Pension
Board are asked for their views on this process.

RISK REVIEW
26. There are a number of items in pension administration and governance which
contain elements of risk to varying degrees. Risks are captured through a
variety of ways, some are on the risk register; while others are picked up as
part of the regular horizon scanning that the Employer Pension Groups do.
27. These groups are now well established, meeting regularly and include
representatives across the board from pensions, HR, finance and others.
RISK REGISTER

Page 57

28. The board are asked to review the Risk Register and to suggest any
amendments. The Risk Register can be found in APPENDIX G.
O’BRIEN CASE
29. The Board will recall from the last Board meeting that this is the case of the
part time judge who won his case. The CJEU ruled that he should be able to
have his pension based on all of his service going back to the 1970’s. The
earliest he had been able to count his service from had been April 2000 when
the Part Time Workers Directive came into force.
30. This will affect retained firefighters and specifically the group that were
identified for the 2006 Modified Fire Pension Scheme, but potentially other
members as well.
31. We do not have any details on the parameters of those involved yet and we
are expecting to see some draft legislation around the summer of 2020.
Needless to say, this is going to be a complex piece of work, mainly because
of the age of some of the records that will have to be looked at.
SCHEME ELIGIBILITY
32. During a recent Fire Technical Group and the South East regional Fire Pension
Officers Group meeting, it came to light that several FRA’s including HFRA
may not have putting members into the correct Fire Pension Scheme.
33. Any new entrant to the scheme, whether they opt in, are automatically enrolled
or contractually enrolled at the date of appointment since 1 April 2015 has
been automatically put into the 2015 Fire Pension Scheme.
34. However, there are cases where they have no eligibility to be a member of the
2015 Fire Pension Scheme and in fact, they should be enrolled into the 2006
Fire Pension Scheme.
35. This could potentially affect a second contract for a firefighter, or at auto
enrolment or opting into the scheme where they have employment with HFRA
on or before 1 April 2012. The flowchart at APPENDIX H attempts to explain
how complex this is.
36. We identified 67 potentially incorrect records of which 49 were determined to
be correct due to their date of birth; at the point when they entered the scheme
they would have already transitioned to the 2015 Fire Pension Scheme.
37. This leaves 18 records that need to be corrected as they should either have
some or all membership in the 2006 Fire Pension Scheme. We are now in the
process of sorting out their payroll and pension records as applicable, which
may involve a refund of contributions.

Page 58

38. This is something that needs to be resolved before the McCloud case remedy
is dealt with or we will not be providing remedy to the correct records.
39. We will also need to ensure that we have adequate processes in place to
capture any new entrants to the scheme and to ensure that we are placing
them in the correct scheme.

McCLOUD/SARGEANT CASE
40. The Fire Pension Scheme preliminary hearing was held on 18 December. The
Employment Tribunal has issued an interim order, which is similar to the
interim order issued after the Police Pension Scheme hearing.
41. An employer’s circular from the National Employers was sent to all FRAs.
Based on this, we issued a communication to all uniformed firefighters about
the current interim order and what this means as far as their pension is
concerned.
42. The Home Office have issued a factsheet which can be found in APPENDIX
J.
43. Pending the official guidance from the Home Office on how to deal with the
interim order, we have a number of actions that we can carry out.
(a)

We are ensuring that any potential ill heath retirement cases for a 1992
transitional member are assessed correctly. This means that we are
asking the Independent Qualified Medical Practitioner (IQMP) to
assess the case under both the 1992 and 2015 scheme rules.

(b)

We are identifying all Ill Health applications since 1 April 2015 from the
2015 Fire Pension Scheme. These will be divided into categories
according to whether they were awarded a lower or higher tier ill health
retirement, or not awarded an ill health retirement.

(c)

We have identified our list of claimants. In total, HFRA has 172
claimants of which 147 are from the 1992 scheme, 23 are from the
2006 scheme and 2 are from the Modified 2006 scheme. Of the 172
claimants, 30 have opted out, left employment or transferred to
another FRA.

(d)

We are in the process of identifying all potential affected members,
past and present, the bulk of which are active members.

44. This item is firmly on the agenda for all the Employer Pension Group meetings.
As these meetings already have a wide spread of representatives, we plan to
use these groups to co-ordinate the work required and to ensure that adequate

Page 59

resources are put in place. If necessary, the frequency of the meetings will be
increased.
45. There will no doubt be a lot of work as a result of both the O’Brien case and
the McCloud case. Hampshire Pension Services are already planning for how
they can best prepare and get resources in place earlier rather than later.
COMMUNICATION
46. The Employer Pension Manager has given three presentations since the last
Hampshire Fire Pension Board meeting:
(a)
(b)
(c)

At the pre-retirement course on 14 November 2019
To transferee recruits on 8 January 2020
To new recruits on 17 January 2020.

MEETINGS
47. The Employer Pension Manager, the Finance Transformation Manager, Board
member Richard North, Chief Fire Officer Neil Odin and two people from
Hampshire Pension Services all attended the Pensions Tax seminar held at
LGA offices on 12 November 2019.
48. There were several presentations from a variety of stakeholders and covered
all manner of things to do with Pensions and tax
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Craig Moran an actuary from First Actuarial about building the case
for change to lobby government
Laura Bowler from Pen-Gage about how we communicate this
complex issue with our members and the language that we use
Kevin Courtney the National Police Chiefs Council Pension Adviser
about what Police are doing
Clair Alcock from LGA about Unauthorised payments and Scheme
Pays
Andy Hopkinson from the Fire Leaders Association about the Public
Services Pension Alliance (PSPA) and the work that they are doing
Annmarie Allen from Barnett Waddingham about what Annual
Allowance and Life Time Allowance are and how they are calculated

49. The Employer Pension Manager attended the South East regional Fire
Pension Officer Group (FPOG) meeting on 28 October 2019. The meetings
are currently attended by a mixture of people, either from Pensions
Administration, payroll or HR functions depending on how the FRA is set up.
50. To try and improve both the communication and information sharing with our
Local Pension Boards, the group would like to encourage all Local Pension
Board chairs to attend these meetings.

Page 60

51. Invitations to attend the SE FPOG meeting will be sent to the chair of the HFRA
Pension Board. There are three meetings per year, and we have agreed to
hold all future meetings at Berkshire FRS.
52. The Employer Pension Manager also attended the Employer Focus Group that
was run by Hampshire Pension Services on 27 November 2019.
53. The Focus Group acts as a feedback session for Hampshire Pension Services
on various topics including,
(a)
(b)
(c)

Review of 2019 Annual Benefit Statements
Member Portal and developments
Monthly reporting discussion

MEMBER PORTAL
54. The Board will be pleased to note that there has been an increase in
registrations on the Pensions Member Portal. It was reported at the last board
meeting that the percentage of those registered was at 16%. This has now
increased to 23%.
55. Numbers of those registered are shown in the table below:

Page 61

56. More work is still needed to help spread the message about registering for the
Member Portal as a large proportion of firefighters are still missing out on
seeing their Annual Benefit Statements.
57. Hampshire Pension Services are planning some developments in 2020 which
will help to increase registrations.
(a)

(b)

By March 2020 they hope to be able to email all new entrants to the
scheme, rather than sending them a postal letter, making them
register online to complete various actions, such as completing a
death grant nomination form.
By summer 2020, they hope to be able to introduce member
estimates. This will enable members to obtain speculative quotations
based on information held on their pension record. This will not be for
ill health retirements as these would still need to go through HR.

58. It is hoped that the improved functionality will give members more of a reason
to register. This will also be really helpful for Firefighters as they have a number
of complex scenarios for their retirement options and this tool will enable them
to gain estimates for various dates as far ahead as they wish.

Page 62

INJURY PENSION AWARD REVIEWS
59. The Board may recall that HFRA have a policy to review injury pensions within
a three to five year period after retirement. There were a number of delays and
issues with setting up the process, including problems with securing adequate
Independent Qualified Medical Practitioner (IQMP) resources.
60. The HR department wrote to the two Fire pensioners who were due a review
to establish if either of them had had a significant change to their injury. The
Board will be pleased to note that both members confirmed that their condition
had not altered and therefore this completes the process for this year and no
further action is required.

CALENDAR OF ITEMS FOR 2020/21
61. A workplan showing the proposed schedule of items for 2020/21 can be found
in APPENDIX K. The Board are asked for any comments or amendments to
this plan. The Board are asked to approve the workplan for 2020/21.

PENSION BOARD MEMBERSHIP
62. The Pension Board will be aware that our Board member Malcolm Eastwood
is retiring on 31 March 2020 and therefore this will be his last Board meeting.
We would like to thank Malcolm for his efforts not only with our Local Pension
Board but also more widely on the national stage in his role as chair of the
Scheme Advisory Board.
63. Due to the fact that this is Malcolm’s last meeting the position of a Member
representative will need to be filled. This will be advertised in the usual way,
but it will also be advertised to all Fire pensioners through the annual pensioner
newsletter that is sent to all retired members from Hampshire Pension
Services.

PENSION BOARD TRAINING
64. Pension Board members have all completed their Training Needs Analysis
form. The summary of the results can be found in APPENDIX L. There some
gaps in knowledge in places and there are a few ways that this training can be
accomplished.
(a)

Board members should complete the Trustee Toolkit online learning
on the Pension Regulator website. There are seven different areas
and Board members can complete these at their leisure.

Page 63

(b)
(c)

The Board could arrange to invite Clair Alcock to attend as an observer
at a Pension Board meeting
The Board could arrange to invite Clair Alcock to deliver some pension
board training, which could be shared with other FRAs if required

RECOMMENDATION
65. The Board are asked to note the content of this report
66. The Board are asked to approve the plan for the data improvement as set
out in paragraphs 20-25 and APPENDIX F
67. The Board are asked to approve the Risk Register as set out in paragraph
28 and APPENDIX G
68. The Board are asked to approve the workplan for 2020/21 as set out in
paragraph 61 and APPENDIX K
69. The Board are asked to approve arranging for Clair Alcock to attend a Fire
Pension Board meeting and to deliver some Pension Board Training as set
out in paragraph 64

APPENDICES ATTACHED
70.
71.
72.
73.
74.
75.
76.
77.
78.
79.
80.

APPENDIX A – TPR Administration & Governance Survey
APPENDIX B – TPR Scheme Return – 1992 Scheme
APPENDIX C – TPR Scheme Return – 2006 Scheme
APPENDIX D – TPR Scheme Return – 2015 Scheme
APPENDIX E – TPR Scheme Return – summary
APPENDIX F – HPS Fire Data Improvement Plan
APPENDIX G – Risk Register
APPENDIX H – Scheme Eligibility flowchart
APPENDIX J – Home Office factsheet
APPENDIX K – Workplan 2020/21
APPENDIX L – Training Needs Analysis summary

Contact:
Claire Neale, Employer Pension Manager, claire.neale@hants.gov.uk,
01962 845481

Page 64

APPENDIX A
2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

The Pensions Regulator
Public Service Governance and Administration Survey 2019
This document is intended to be used as a guide to help you gather the information required for
the survey. Please note, however, that we need you to complete the questionnaire through the
online survey link contained in your invitation email.
Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey. Please answer the questions in relation to
the scheme referenced in your invitation email. Where the scheme is locally administered, we
mean the sub-scheme or fund administered by the local scheme manager.
Your responses will be kept anonymous unless you consent otherwise at the end of the survey.
Linking your scheme name to your answers will help inform The Pensions Regulator’s (TPR’s)
engagement with you in the future.
This survey should be completed by the scheme manager or by another party on behalf of the
scheme manager. They should work with the pension board chair to complete it, and other parties
(e.g. the administrator) where appropriate.
There is a space at the end of the survey to add comments about your answers where you feel this
would be useful.

SECTION A – GOVERNANCE
The first set of questions is about how your pension board works in practice.
A1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does your scheme have a documented policy to manage the pension board members’ conflicts of
interest?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
A2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does your scheme maintain a register of pension board members’ interests?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
A3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Focusing on the scheme’s pension board meetings in the last 12 months, please tell us the
following:
Please write in the number for each of a-c below
a) Number of board meetings that were scheduled
to take place (in the last 12 months)

4

b) Number of board meetings that actually took
place (in the last 12 months)

4

c) Number of board meetings that were attended
by the scheme manager or their representative
(in the last 12 months)
1 65
Page

4

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

A4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Do the scheme manager and pension board have sufficient time and resources to run the scheme
properly?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
A5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Do the scheme manager and pension board have access to all the knowledge, understanding and
skills necessary to properly run the scheme?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
A6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
How often does the scheme manager or pension board carry out an evaluation of the knowledge,
understanding and skills of the board as a whole in relation to running the scheme?
Please select one answer only
1. At least monthly
2. At least quarterly
3. At least every six months
4. At least annually
5. Less frequently
6. Never
7. Don’t know
A7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
On average, how many hours of training per year does each pension board member have in
relation to their role on the pension board?
Please write in the number below
2 hours per year
A8. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the pension board believe that in the last 12 months it has had access to all the information
about the operation of the scheme it has needed to fulfil its functions?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
A9. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Is the pension board able to obtain sufficient specialist advice on the following matters when it
needs to?
Please select one answer per row
Yes
No
Don’t know
a) Administration

○

○

○

b) Cyber security

○

○

○

c) Legal

○

○

○

Page2 66

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

A10. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Focusing on the composition of your pension board, please tell us the following:
Please write in the number for each of a-d below
a) Number of current board members

6

b) Number of vacant positions on the board

0

c) Number of members that have left the board
in the last 12 months

2

d) Number of members that have been appointed
to the board in the last 12 months

2

A11. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the scheme have a succession plan in place for the members of the pension board?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
A12. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Has the scheme manager delegated the responsibility for making the day-to-day decisions needed
to run the scheme to another person?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

SECTION B – MANAGING RISKS
The next set of questions is about managing risks.
B1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does your scheme have its own documented procedures for assessing and managing risk?
Please select ‘No’ if your scheme relies on your local authority’s documented procedures for
assessing and managing risk.
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
B2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does your scheme have its own risk register?
Please select ‘No’ if your scheme relies on your local authority’s risk register.
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
3 67
Page

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

B3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
In the last 12 months, how many pension board meetings reviewed the scheme’s exposure to new
and existing risks?
Please write in the number below
4
B4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
To what do the top three governance and administration risks on your register relate? If you do
not have a risk register, please tell us to what the top three governance and administration risks
facing your scheme relate.
Please select up to three options below
1. Funding or investment
2. Record-keeping (i.e. the receipt and management of correct data)
3. Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) reconciliation
4. Securing compliance with changes in scheme regulations
5. Production of annual benefit statements
6. Receiving contributions from the employer(s)
7. Lack of resources/time
8. Recruitment and retention of staff or knowledge
9. Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel
10. Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc.)
11. Failure of internal controls
12. Systems failures (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc.)
13. Cyber risk (i.e. the risk of loss, disruption or damage to a scheme or its members as a result
of the failure of its IT systems and processes)
14. Administrator issues (expense, performance, etc.)
15. Other (please specify): ......................................................................................................
16. Don’t know

SECTION C – ADMINISTRATION AND RECORD-KEEPING PROCESSES
The next set of questions is about administration and record-keeping.
C1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the scheme have an administration strategy?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
C2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Which of the following best describes the scheme’s administration services?
Please select one answer only
1. Delivered in house
2. Undertaken by another public body (e.g. a county council) under a shared service agreement
or outsource contract
3. Outsourced to a commercial third party
4. Other
5. Don’t know

Page4 68

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

C3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Which of the following do you use to measure the performance of your administrators (whether
in-house or outsourced)?
Please select all the options that apply
1. Performance against a service level agreement or service schedule
2. Member satisfaction ratings
3. ‘Right first time’ statistics
4. Testing the accuracy of calculations
5. Analysis of errors
6. Complaints volumes and trends
7. Volumes of rework required
8. Assessing project delivery against initially agreed time and cost
9. Benchmarking against the market
10. Auditing administration functions and systems
11. None of these
12. Don’t know
C4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
To what extent are the following processes automated?
A process is automated if it is completed through the use of technology, for example through a
software platform, with minimal human intervention.
Please select one answer per row

Fully
automated

Mainly
automated
with some
manual
intervention

Mainly
done
manually

All done
manually

Don’t
know

a) Verification and input of
employer data

○

○

○

○

○

b) Reconciliation of
contributions

○

○

○

○

○

c)

Reporting – data quality

○

○

○

○

○

d) Reporting – complaints and
issues

○

○

○

○

○

e) Benefit value calculations

○

○

○

○

○

f)

○

○

○

○

○

g) Production of benefit
statements

○

○

○

○

○

h) Monitoring workload and
resourcing

○

○

○

○

○

Transfer value calculations

5 69
Page

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

C5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
What, if any, barriers do you face to automating more of the scheme’s processes?
Please select all the options that apply
1. Lack of suitable technology
2. Difficulty in integrating it with the scheme’s existing systems
3. The initial set-up costs involved
4. Securing the necessary internal approval
5. Internal resistance to (further) automation
6. Lack of knowledge/expertise about how to implement this
7. Poor quality of the data
8. Other (please specify): .......................................................................................................
9. No barriers to automating more of the scheme’s processes
10. Don’t know
C6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
In the last 12 months, how many pension board meetings had administration as a dedicated item
on the agenda?
Please write in the number below
1
C7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Do you have processes in place to monitor scheme records for all membership types on an
ongoing basis to ensure they are accurate and complete?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
C8. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the scheme have an agreed process in place with the employer(s) to receive, check and
review data?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
C9. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Is your scheme single employer or multi-employer?
Please select one answer only
1. Single employer scheme (i.e. used by just one employer)
2. Multi-employer scheme (i.e. used by several different employers)

Page6 70

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

C10. ANSWER IF SINGLE EMPLOYER SCHEME (C9=1)
Does your participating employer…
Please select one answer per row

Yes

No

Don’t know

a) Always provide you with timely data?

○

○

○

b) Always provide accurate and complete data?

○

○

○

c)

Submit data to you monthly?

○

○

○

d) Submit data to you electronically?

○

○

○

C11. ANSWER IF MULTI-EMPLOYER SCHEME (C9=2)
What proportion of your scheme’s employers…
Please write in the percentage (from 0% to 100%) for each of a-d below. If you do not know exactly,
please give an approximate percentage.
a) Always provide you with timely data?

................... %

b) Always provide accurate and complete data?

................... %

c) Submit data to you monthly?

................... %

d) Submit data to you electronically?

................... %

C12. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the scheme have a process in place for monitoring the payment of contributions?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
C13. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the scheme have a process in place for resolving contribution payment issues?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

7 71
Page

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

SECTION D – CYBER SECURITY
The next set of questions is about your scheme’s cyber security.
D1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Which, if any, of the following controls does your scheme have in place to protect your data and
assets from ‘cyber risk’?
By ‘cyber risk’ we mean the risk of loss, disruption or damage to a scheme or its members as a
result of the failure of its information technology systems and processes.
Please select all the options that apply
1. Roles and responsibilities in respect of cyber resilience are clearly defined and documented
2. Cyber risk is on the risk register and regularly reviewed
3. Assessment of the vulnerability to a cyber incident of the key functions, systems, assets and
parties involved in the running of the scheme
4. Assessment of the likelihood of different types of breaches occurring in the scheme
5. Access to specialist skills and expertise to understand and manage the risk
6. System controls (e.g. firewalls, anti-virus and anti-malware products and regular updates of
software)
7. Controls restricting access to systems and data
8. Critical systems and data are regularly backed up
9. Policies on the acceptable use of devices, passwords and other authentication, and on home
and mobile working
10. Policies on data access, protection, use and transmission which are in line with data
protection legislation and guidance
11. An incident response plan to deal with any incidents which occur
12. The scheme manager has assured themselves of third party providers’ controls (including
administrators)
13. The scheme manager receives regular updates on cyber risks, incidents and controls
14. The pension board receives regular updates on cyber risks, incidents and controls
15. None of these
16. Don’t know
D2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Have any of the following happened to your scheme, including at your administration provider, in
the last 12 months?
Please select all the options that apply
1. Computers becoming infected with ransomware
2. Computers becoming infected with other viruses, spyware or malware
3. Attacks that try to take down your website or online services
4. Hacking or attempted hacking of online bank accounts
5. People impersonating your scheme in emails or online
6. Staff receiving fraudulent emails or being directed to fraudulent websites
7. Unauthorised use of computers, networks or servers by staff, even if accidental
8. Unauthorised use or hacking of computers, networks or servers by people outside your
scheme
9. Any other types of cyber security breaches or attacks
10. None of these
11. Don’t know

Page8 72

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

D3. ANSWER IF EXPERIENCED ANY CYBER SECURITY BREACHES IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (D2=1-9)
Thinking of all the cyber security breaches or attacks experienced by your scheme in the last 12
months (including at your administration provider), which, if any, of the following happened as a
result?
Please select all the options that apply
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Software or systems were corrupted or damaged
Personal data (e.g. on members, beneficiaries or staff) was altered, destroyed or taken
Permanent loss of files (other than personal data)
Temporary loss of access to files or networks
Lost or stolen assets, trade secrets or intellectual property
Money was stolen
Your website or online services were taken down or made slower
Lost access to any third-party services you rely on
None of these
Don’t know

SECTION E – DATA REVIEW
The next set of questions is about your scheme’s approach to reviewing and improving its data.
E1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
When did your scheme last complete a data review exercise?
Please select one answer only
1. Within the last 12 months
2. More than 12 months ago
3. Never completed one
4. Don’t know
E2. ANSWER IF SCHEME HAS EVER COMPLETED A DATA REVIEW EXERCISE (E1=1 OR 2)
Did your scheme’s most recently completed data review exercise identify any issues or problems
with the following?
Please select one answer per row

Yes

No

Don’t know

a) National insurance number

○

○

○

b) Date of birth

○

○

○

c) First name

○

○

○

d) Surname

○

○

○

e) Gender

○

○

○

f) First line of address

○

○

○

g) Postcode

○

○

○

h) Membership start date

○

○

○

i)

Membership end date (if applicable)

○

○

○

j)

Expected retirement age

○

○

○

k) Anticipated income at retirement
(based on expected retirement age)

○

○

○

l)

○

○

○

Other data item(s)

9 73
Page

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

E3. ANSWER IF REVIEW IDENTIFIED ISSUES WITH ANY OF THE SPECIFIC DATA ITEMS (YES AT ANY OF
E2a-k)
Focussing just on the specific data items that you identified issues or problems with in your most
recently completed data review, approximately what percentage of the scheme memberships
were affected by each one?
Please select one answer per row
(just for those selected at E2)

% of memberships affected
<1%

1-9%

10-19%

20-29%

30%+

Don’t
know

a) National insurance number

○

○

○

○

○

○

b) Date of birth

○

○

○

○

○

○

c) First name

○

○

○

○

○

○

d) Surname

○

○

○

○

○

○

e) Gender

○

○

○

○

○

○

f) First line of address

○

○

○

○

○

○

g) Postcode

○

○

○

○

○

○

h) Membership start date

○

○

○

○

○

○

i)

Membership end date (if
applicable)

○

○

○

○

○

○

j)

Expected retirement age

○

○

○

○

○

○

○

○

○

○

○

○

k) Anticipated income at retirement
(based on expected retirement age)

E4. ANSWER IF DATA REVIEW IDENTIFIED ISSUES WITH ANY DATA ITEMS (YES AT ANY OF E2a-l)
Has any action been taken to address the issues or problems identified with the data?
Please choose one answer that most closely describes the action your scheme has taken to date
1. An improvement plan is in development
2. An improvement plan is in place but rectification work is not yet complete
3. An improvement plan has been put in place and rectification work has been completed
4. Rectification work has been undertaken without an improvement plan
5. No improvement plan has been developed and no work has been undertaken
6. Don’t know

SECTION F – ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS
The next set of questions is about members’ annual benefit statements.
F1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
In 2019, what proportion of active members received their annual benefit statements by the
statutory deadline?
Please write in the percentage below. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate
percentage.
100 %

Page10 74

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

F2. ANSWER IF DEADLINE WAS MISSED FOR ANY MEMBERS (F1=0-99%)
Was the missed deadline for issuing active member statements reported to TPR?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes - and Breach of Law report made
2. Yes - but decided not to make a Breach of Law report
3. No - not reported
4. Don’t know
F3. ANSWER IF MISSED DEADLINE WAS NOT REPORTED TO TPR (F2=3)
What was the main reason for not reporting the breach?
Please select one answer only
1. Not material - few statements affected
2. Not material - very short delay
3. Other reason (please specify): ...........................................................................................
4. Don’t know
F4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
What proportion of all the annual benefit statements the scheme sent out in 2019 contained all
the data required by regulations?
Please write in the percentage below. If you do not know exactly, please give an approximate
percentage.
100 %

SECTION G – RESOLVING ISSUES
The next set of questions is about resolving issues or complaints the scheme has received.
G1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the scheme have a working definition of what constitutes a complaint?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
G2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Focusing on the complaints you have received in the last 12 months from members or
beneficiaries in relation to their benefits and/or the running of the scheme, please tell us the
following information.
Please write in the number for each of a), b) and c) below. The number at b) should be equal to or
lower than the number at a). The number at c) should be equal to or lower than the number at b).
a) Total number of complaints received

1

b) Number of these complaints that have entered
the Internal Dispute Resolution (IDR) process

0

c) Number of these complaints that were upheld
by the IDR process

0

11 75
Page

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

G3. ANSWER IF ANY COMPLAINTS ENTERED THE IDR PROCESS IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (G2b>0)
To what did the top three types of complaint going through the IDR process relate?
Please select up to three options below
1. Slow or ineffective communication
2. Inaccuracies or disputes around pension value or definitions
3. Delays to benefit payments
4. Disputes or queries about the amount of benefit paid
5. Delay or refusal of pension transfer
6. Inaccurate data held and/or statement issued
7. Pension overpayment and recovery
8. Eligibility for ill health benefit
9. Other (please specify): .......................................................................................................
10. Don’t know

SECTION H – REPORTING BREACHES
The next set of questions is about the scheme’s approach to dealing with any breaches of the law.
H1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Does the scheme have procedures in place to allow the scheme manager, pension board members
and others to identify breaches of the law?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
H2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
In the last 12 months, have you identified any breaches of the law that are not related to annual
benefit statements?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
H3. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES OF THE LAW NOT RELATED TO ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS HAVE
BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (H2=1)
What were the root causes of the breaches identified?
Please select all the options that apply
1. Systems or process failure
2. Failure to maintain records or rectify errors
3. Management of transactions (e.g. errors or delays in payments of benefits)
4. Failure of the employer(s) to provide timely, accurate or complete data
5. Late or non-payment of contributions by the employer(s)
6. Other employer-related issues (please specify): ...............................................................
7. Something else (please specify): .......................................................................................
8. Don’t know

Page12 76

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

H4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Are there procedures in place to assess breaches of the law, and report these to TPR if required?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know
H5. ANSWER IF ANY BREACHES OF THE LAW NOT RELATED TO ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS HAVE
BEEN IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST 12 MONTHS (H2=1)
In the last 12 months, have you reported any breaches to TPR as you thought they were materially
significant? Please do not include any breaches that related to annual benefit statements.
Please select one answer only
1. Yes
2. No
3. Don’t know

SECTION I – GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
The next set of questions is about your progress in addressing governance and administration
issues.
I1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
What do you believe are the top three factors behind any improvements made to the scheme’s
governance and administration in the last 12 months?
Please select up to three options below
1. Improved understanding of underlying legislation and standards expected by TPR
2. Improved engagement by TPR
3. Improved understanding of the risks facing the scheme
4. Resources increased or redeployed to address risks
5. Administrator action (please specify): .................................................................................
6. Scheme manager action (please specify): ...........................................................................
7. Pension board action (please specify): ...............................................................................
8. Other (please specify): ........................................................................................................
9. No improvements made to governance/administration in the last 12 months
10. Don’t know
I2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
What are the main three barriers to improving the governance and administration of your scheme
over the next 12 months?
Please select up to three options below
1. Lack of resources or time
2. Complexity of the scheme
3. The volume of changes that are required to comply with legislation
4. Recruitment, training and retention of staff and knowledge
5. Lack of knowledge, effectiveness or leadership among key personnel
6. Poor communications between key personnel (board, scheme manager, administrator, etc.)
7. Employer compliance
8. Issues with systems (IT, payroll, administration systems, etc.)
9. The McCloud judgement
10. Other (please specify): .......................................................................................................
11. There are no barriers
12. Don’t know
13 77
Page

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

SECTION J – PERCEPTIONS OF TPR
The final set of questions is about your views of TPR.
J1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Thinking about your overall perception of TPR, to what extent do you agree or disagree with the
following words as ways to describe TPR?
Please select one answer per row

Neither
agree nor
disagree Disagree

Strongly
agree

Strongly
disagree

Don’t
know

Agree

a) Tough

○

○

○

○

○

○

b) Efficient

○

○

○

○

○

○

c) Visible

○

○

○

○

○

○

d) Fair

○

○

○

○

○

○

e) Respected

○

○

○

○

○

○

f) Evidence-based

○

○

○

○

○

○

g) Decisive

○

○

○

○

○

○

h) Clear

○

○

○

○

○

○

i)

○

○

○

○

○

○

Approachable

J2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Thinking now about how TPR operates, how effective do you think it is at improving standards in
scheme governance and administration in public service pension schemes?
Please select one answer only
1. Very effective
2. Fairly effective
3. Neither effective nor ineffective
4. Not very effective
5. Not at all effective
6. Don’t know
J3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements?
Please select one answer per row

Neither
agree nor
disagree Disagree

Strongly
agree

Agree

a) TPR is effective at bringing
about the right changes in
behaviour among its
regulated audiences

○

○

○

b) TPR is proactive at reducing
serious risks to member
benefits

○

○

○

Page14 78

Strongly
disagree

Don’t
know

○

○

○

○

○

○

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

SECTION K – ATTRIBUTION
Thank you for completing this survey. Your responses will help TPR understand how schemes are
progressing and any issues they may face, which will inform further policy and product
developments. Before you submit your answers, there are just a few more questions about your
survey responses.
K1. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Which of the following best describes your role within the pension scheme?
Please select one answer only
1. Scheme manager*
2. Representative of the scheme manager
3. Pension board chair
4. Pension board member
5. Administrator
6. Other (please specify): ......................................................................................................
*In this survey ‘scheme manager’ refers to the definition within the Public Service Pensions Act, e.g.
the Local Authority, Fire and Rescue Authority, Police Pensions Authority, Secretary of State/Minister
or Ministerial department.
K2. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
What other parties did you consult with to complete this survey?
Please select all the options that apply
1. Scheme manager
2. Representative of the scheme manager
3. Pension board chair
4. Pension board member
5. Administrator
6. Other
7. Did not consult with any other parties
K3. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
To inform TPR’s engagement going forward, they would like to build an individual profile of your
scheme by linking your scheme name to your survey answers. This will only be used for internal
purposes by TPR and your scheme name would not be revealed in any published report.
Are you happy for your responses to be linked to your scheme name and supplied to TPR for this
purpose?
Please select one answer only
1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and supplied to TPR for
this purpose
2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous
K4. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
And would you be happy for the responses you have given to be linked to your scheme name and
shared with the relevant scheme advisory board? This is to help inform the advisory boards of
areas for improvement and to further their engagement with pension boards.
Please select one answer only
1. Yes, I am happy for my responses to be linked to my scheme name and shared with the
relevant advisory board
2. No, I would like my responses to remain anonymous
15 79
Page

2019 Public Service Governance & Administration Survey – Questionnaire

K5. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
TPR may conduct some follow up research on this topic to improve their advice and engagement
with schemes such as yours. Would you be willing for us to pass on your name, contact details and
relevant survey responses to them so that they, or a different research agency on their behalf,
could invite you to take part?
You may not be contacted and, if you are, there is no obligation to take part. Your contact details
will be stored for a maximum duration of 12 months, before being securely destroyed.
Please select one answer only
1. Yes, I am happy to be contacted for follow-up research
2. No, I would prefer not to be contacted for follow-up research
K6. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Please record your name below. This is just for quality control purposes and will not be passed on
to TPR (unless you have agreed that they can contact you for follow-up research).
Please write in below
Claire Neale
K7. EVERYONE TO ANSWER
Finally, please use the space below if you have any other comments or would like to clarify/
explain any of the answers you have given.
Please write in below if applicable
...................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................

Thank you. Please now submit your responses through the online survey link contained in your
invitation email. If you have any queries or technical issues please contact James Murray (Director,
OMB Research) at james.murray@ombresearch.co.uk or on 01732 220582.

Page16 80

APPENDIX B
Scheme return
2018 - 2019

Your scheme details:
Firefighters' Pension Scheme (FPS 1992) - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service

Date produced: 13 November 2019

PSR number: 10079130

Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 81

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 2 of 11

1. Introduction
The following are the details that were on the scheme return submitted on 13 November 2019 11:37 AM.
The scheme return details were confirmed by Mrs Claire Neale.
2. Scheme details (includes membership details)
Basic details
Scheme name

Firefighters' Pension Scheme (FPS 1992) - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service

PSR number

10079130

Scheme address

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Strategic Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Scheme type

Occupational

Benefit type

Defined benefit

Current status

Closed to new members since 05 April 2006

Scheme year-end (DD/MM) 31/03 since 01 April 1973
HMRC reference number
(PSTR)

00616321RF

Number of members as at 31 March 2018
The Pensions Regulator requires to know the number of members present at the scheme year-end
between the dates 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018.
Active members

151

Deferred members

85

Pensioner members

954

Total of members

1190

Number of members as at 31 March 2019
The Pensions Regulator requires to know the number of members present at the scheme year-end
between the dates 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019.
Active members

110

Deferred members

81

Pensioner members

967

Total of members

1158

3. Governance Details

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 82

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 3 of 11

Manager of the scheme
Role or organisation name Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority (Delegated scheme management to Standards
and Governance Committee)
Address of manager of the Mr Robert Carr, Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
scheme
Strategic Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom
Telephone number

01962 847508

Email address

rob.carr@hants.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Malcolm Eastwood

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Telephone number
Email address
Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Councillor Roger Price

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire County Council
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 847741

Email address

roger.price@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 83

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 4 of 11

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Stew Adamson

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

Yes

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Strategic Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

stew.adamson@hantsfire.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Richard North

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Strategic Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

richard.north@hantsfire.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Dan Tasker

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

dan.tasker@hantsfire.gov.uk

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 84

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 5 of 11

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Richard Scarth

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

richard.scarth@hantsfire.gov.uk

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 85

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 6 of 11

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 86

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 7 of 11

3. Record-keeping
Common data
Have you measured your
common data in the last
three years?

Yes

When did you last measure October 2019
your common data?
What percentage of this
96%
data have you assessed to
be present and accurate?
Scheme-specific (‘conditional’) data
Have you measured your
scheme-specific
('conditional') data in the
last three years?

Yes

When did you last measure October 2019
your scheme-specific
('conditional') data?
What percentage of this
90%
data have you assessed to
be present and accurate?

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 87

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 8 of 11

5. Employer details
Employer
Employer's name

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Employer type

Participating Employer

Organisation type

Government / public body

Address of employer

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Strategic Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Employer status

Active since 01 February 1900

Employer email address

fire.pensions@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 88

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 9 of 11

6. Service provider details
Insurance company
There is currently no insurance company listed as involved with this scheme.
Third party administrator
Organisation name

Hampshire Pension Services

Address of administrator

2nd floor EII South
Hampshire County Council
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845588

Email address

pensions@hants.gov.uk

In-house administrator
There is currently no in-house administrator listed as involved with this scheme. Details required are name and
address, telephone number and email address.
Auditor
Organisation name

Ernst & Young Llp

Address of auditor

Ernst & Young Llp
1 More London Place
LONDON
SE1 2AF
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02079512000

Email address

assurance@uk.ey.com

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 89

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 10 of 11

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 90

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:37

Page 11 of 11

7. Contact details
Scheme contact details
Name of contact

Mrs Claire Neale

Job title

Employer Pension Manager

Address of contact

2nd Floor EII South
Hampshire County Council
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845481

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

Pension tracing service contact details
Name of contact

Mrs Claire Neale

Address of contact

2nd Floor EII South
Hampshire County Council
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845481

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

Consent to electronic service details
Confirmed by contact name Mrs Claire Neale
Confirmed date

04/11/2019

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10079130
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 91

APPENDIX C
Scheme return
2018 - 2019

Your scheme details:
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2006 - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service

Date produced: 13 November 2019

PSR number: 10276804

Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 92

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 2 of 11

1. Introduction
The following are the details that were on the scheme return submitted on 13 November 2019 11:58 AM.
The scheme return details were confirmed by Mrs Claire Neale.
2. Scheme details (includes membership details)
Basic details
Scheme name

Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 2006 - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service

PSR number

10276804

Scheme address

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Scheme type

Occupational

Benefit type

Defined benefit

Current status

Closed to new members since 31 March 2015

Scheme year-end (DD/MM) 31/03 since 06 April 2006
HMRC reference number
(PSTR)

00680146RV

Number of members as at 31 March 2018
The Pensions Regulator requires to know the number of members present at the scheme year-end
between the dates 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018.
Active members

87

Deferred members

460

Pensioner members

100

Total of members

647

Number of members as at 31 March 2019
The Pensions Regulator requires to know the number of members present at the scheme year-end
between the dates 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019.
Active members

57

Deferred members

463

Pensioner members

111

Total of members

631

3. Governance Details

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 93

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 3 of 11

Manager of the scheme
Role or organisation name Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (Delegated scheme management to Standards
and Governance Committee)
Address of manager of the Mr Robert Carr, Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
scheme
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom
Telephone number

01962 847508

Email address

rob.carr@hants.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Malcolm Eastwood

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Telephone number
Email address
Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Councillor Roger Price

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire County Council
County Treasurer
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UB
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 847741

Email address

roger.price@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 94

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 4 of 11

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Stew Adamson

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

Yes

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

stew.adamson@hantsfire.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Richard North

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

richard.north@hantsfire.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Dan Tasker

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

dan.tasker@hantsfire.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 95

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 5 of 11

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Richard Scarth

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

richard.scarth@hantsfire.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 96

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 6 of 11

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 97

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 7 of 11

3. Record-keeping
Common data
Have you measured your
common data in the last
three years?

Yes

When did you last measure October 2019
your common data?
What percentage of this
84%
data have you assessed to
be present and accurate?
Scheme-specific (‘conditional’) data
Have you measured your
scheme-specific
('conditional') data in the
last three years?

Yes

When did you last measure October 2019
your scheme-specific
('conditional') data?
What percentage of this
75%
data have you assessed to
be present and accurate?

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 98

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 8 of 11

5. Employer details
Employer
Employer's name

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service

Employer type

Participating Employer

Organisation type

Government / public body

Address of employer

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Employer status

Active since 01 February 1900

Employer email address

fire.pensions@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 99

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 9 of 11

6. Service provider details
Insurance company
There is currently no insurance company listed as involved with this scheme.
Third party administrator
Organisation name

Hampshire Pension Services

Address of administrator

Hampshire County Council
2nd floor EII South
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845588

Email address

pensions@hants.gov.uk

In-house administrator
There is currently no in-house administrator listed as involved with this scheme. Details required are name and
address, telephone number and email address.
Auditor
Organisation name

Earnst & Young Llp

Address of auditor

Ernst & Young Llp
1 More London Place
LONDON
SE1 2AF
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02079512000

Email address

assurance@uk.ey.com

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 100

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 10 of 11

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 101

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:58

Page 11 of 11

7. Contact details
Scheme contact details
Name of contact

Mrs Claire Neale

Job title

Employer Pension Manager

Address of contact

Hampshire County Council
2nd Floor EII South
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845481

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

Pension tracing service contact details
Name of contact

Mrs Claire Neale

Address of contact

Hampshire County Council
2nd Floor EII South
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845481

Email address

fire.pensions@hants.gov.uk

Consent to electronic service details
Confirmed by contact name Mrs Claire Neale
Confirmed date

04/11/2019

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276804
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 102

APPENDIX D
Scheme return
2018 - 2019

Your scheme details:
Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2015 - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service (HFRS)

Date produced: 13 November 2019

PSR number: 10276688

Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 103

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 2 of 11

1. Introduction
The following are the details that were on the scheme return submitted on 13 November 2019 11:45 AM.
The scheme return details were confirmed by Mrs Claire Neale.
2. Scheme details (includes membership details)
Basic details
Scheme name

Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2015 - Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service (HFRS)

PSR number

10276688

Scheme address

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Scheme type

Occupational

Benefit type

Defined benefit

Current status

Open to new members since 01 April 2015

Scheme year-end (DD/MM) 31/03 since 01 April 2015
HMRC reference number
(PSTR)

00823277RK

Number of members as at 31 March 2018
The Pensions Regulator requires to know the number of members present at the scheme year-end
between the dates 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018.
Active members

931

Deferred members

270

Pensioner members

3

Total of members

1204

Number of members as at 31 March 2019
The Pensions Regulator requires to know the number of members present at the scheme year-end
between the dates 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019.
Active members

1055

Deferred members

358

Pensioner members

5

Total of members

1418

3. Governance Details

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 104

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 3 of 11

Manager of the scheme
Role or organisation name Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (Delegated scheme management to Standards
and Governance Committee)
Address of manager of the Mr Robert Carr, Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
scheme
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom
Telephone number

01962 847508

Email address

rob.carr@hants.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Malcolm Eastwood

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Telephone number
Email address
Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Councillor Roger Price

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire County Council
County Treasurer
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UB
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 847741

Email address

roger.price@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 105

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 4 of 11

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Stew Adamson

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

Yes

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

stew.adamson@hantsfire.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Richard North

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

07918 888104

Email address

richard.north@hantsfire.gov.uk

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Dan Tasker

Pension board member
type

Employer

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

dan.tasker@hantsfire.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 106

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 5 of 11

Pension board member
Name of pension board
member

Mr Richard Scarth

Pension board member
type

Member

Chair of pension board

No

Address of pension board
member

Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service
Headquarters
Leigh Road
EASTLEIGH
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02380 644000

Email address

richard.scarth@hantsfire.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 107

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 6 of 11

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 108

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 7 of 11

3. Record-keeping
Common data
Have you measured your
common data in the last
three years?

Yes

When did you last measure October 2019
your common data?
What percentage of this
97%
data have you assessed to
be present and accurate?
Scheme-specific (‘conditional’) data
Have you measured your
scheme-specific
('conditional') data in the
last three years?

Yes

When did you last measure October 2019
your scheme-specific
('conditional') data?
What percentage of this
73%
data have you assessed to
be present and accurate?

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 109

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 8 of 11

5. Employer details
Employer
Employer's name

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Employer type

Participating Employer

Organisation type

Government / public body

Address of employer

Fire Headquarters
Leigh Road
Eastleigh
Hampshire
SO50 9SJ
United Kingdom

Employer status

Active since 01 February 1900

Employer email address

fire.pensions@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 110

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 9 of 11

6. Service provider details
Insurance company
There is currently no insurance company listed as involved with this scheme.
Third party administrator
Organisation name

Hampshire Pension Services

Address of administrator

Hampshire County Council
2nd floor EII South
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845588

Email address

pensions@hants.gov.uk

In-house administrator
There is currently no in-house administrator listed as involved with this scheme. Details required are name and
address, telephone number and email address.
Auditor
Organisation name

Ernst & Young

Address of auditor

Ernst & Young Llp
1 More London Place
LONDON
SE1 2AF
United Kingdom

Telephone number

02079512000

Email address

assurance@uk.ey.com

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 111

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 10 of 11

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 112

Date produced: 13 November 2019 at 11:45

Page 11 of 11

7. Contact details
Scheme contact details
Name of contact

Mrs Claire Neale

Job title

Employer Pension Manager

Address of contact

Hampshire County Council
2nd Floor EII South
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845481

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

Pension tracing service contact details
Name of contact

Mrs Claire Neale

Address of contact

Hampshire County Council
2nd Floor EII South
The Castle
WINCHESTER
Hampshire
SO23 8UJ
United Kingdom

Telephone number

01962 845481

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

Consent to electronic service details
Confirmed by contact name Mrs Claire Neale
Confirmed date

04/11/2019

Email address

claire.neale@hants.gov.uk

PSR number: 10276688
Please note that this document cannot be used in place of a scheme return and will not be accepted as such by
the Pensions Regulator. If you are required to complete a scheme return and are unable to do so online you should
contact us by phone on 0345 600 5666 and select option 2 (Mon - Fri 9am - 5.30pm). Alternatively you can email
us at exchange@thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

Page 113

APPENDIX E

The Pension Regulator Scheme Returns - FIRE Schemes

Page 114

Year end
TPR Scheme Return
Scheme
1992 Fire Pension Scheme
2006 Fire Pension Scheme
2006 Modified Fire Pension Scheme
2015 Fire Pension Scheme
Total

31/03/2017
November 2017
Actives
Deferreds
Pensioners
Beneficiaries
195
84
812
127
122
391
28
1
40
42
57
2
840
159
1
0
1,197
676
898
130

Year end
TPR Scheme Return

31/03/2018
November 2018

Scheme
1992 Fire Pension Scheme
2006 Fire Pension Scheme
2006 Modified Fire Pension Scheme
2015 Fire Pension Scheme
Total

Actives

Year end
TPR Scheme Return

31/03/2019
November 2019

Scheme
1992 Fire Pension Scheme
2006 Fire Pension Scheme
2006 Modified Fire Pension Scheme
2015 Fire Pension Scheme
Total

Deferreds
151
52
35
931
1,169

Actives

Pensioners
85
416
44
270
815

Deferreds
110
30
27
1,055
1,222

825
33
60
3
921

Pensioners
81
421
42
358
902

836
37
67
5
945

Beneficiaries
129
5
2
0
136

Beneficiaries
131
5
2
0
138

Common
Data Score

Conditional
Data Score

97.45%
94.99%
99.28%
99.17%

Common
Data Score

99.40%
98.80%
97.83%
97.30%

Conditional
Data Score
96%
84%
98%
97%

90%
75%
82%
73%

APPENDIX F

Description of Data Issue

Number of
Records
Affected
Proposed Resolution

Additional Cost involved?
Yes
Target will charge £1 for each address trace
initially; further charges may be applicable if
more detailed investigation is required.

Target Date
TBC
approval
needed for
associated
cost

Page 115

Address and/or Postcode
not current

88

All deferred and pensioner members; arrange for
Target (third party tracing) to obtain addresses
where possible or confirm if deceased.

Date of Birth
inconsistent/incorrect

1

Write to member and request
confirmation/evidence of DOB.

N/A

31/03/2020

Date Pensionable service
started is inconsistent

57

Confirm correct start date with Fire Authority (or
previous Fire Authority if transferred from
elsewhere)

N/A

31/03/2020

Date Pensionable Service
Ended inconsistent

5

Review documents held, or confirm correct leaving
date with Fire Authority
N/A

31/03/2020

Divorce Details incomplete

23

HPS to carry out review of highlighted records to
ensure Pension Sharing Order has been set up
correctly.

N/A

31/03/2020

Transfer In Details
incomplete

39

HPS to carry out review of highlighted records to
ensure Transfer In has been set up correctly.

N/A

31/03/2020

26

HPS to carry out review of highlighted records to
ensure CARE pension has been calculated and
revalued correctly.

N/A

31/03/2020

3

HPS to carry out review of highlighted records to
ensure deferred benefits are correct and recorded
accurately on member record.
N/A

31/03/2020

CARE Benefits
incorrect/inconsistent
Deferred Benefit pension
elements are not
consistent/valid

Fire Risk Register

APPENDIX G

Likelihood v Impact scoring

Likelihood

Impact
Negligible

Minor

Moderate

Major

Catastrophic

1

2

3

4

5

Page 116

Rare

1

1

2

3

4

5

Unlikely

2

2

4

6

8

10

Possible

3

3

6

9

12

15

Likely

4

4

8

12

16

20

Almost certain

5

5

10

15

20

25

Risk Register for Fire Pensions

Risk Register for Fire Pensions

Risk
Date
number identified

1

Risk area

12/05/2017 Operations

Risk description

Failure to administer the pension scheme
in a proper and effective manner

Likelihood Impact Risk score Control measure / mitigation

2

3

6

Page 117

2

12/05/2017 Financial

Failure to pay the right amounts on time
and in line with legislation

3

3

9

3

12/05/2017 Funding

Failure to adequately account for fund
pension contributions

2

4

8

4

12/05/2017

Regulatory and Failure to identify and interpret and
Compliance
implement legislation correctly

3

4

12

• Liaison with employer
• End of Year
• Employer web (UPM access)
• Fire Employer Group & Pensions Admin Group
• Fire Pension Board
• Management oversight and escalation to Rob Carr
• Diversification – we run a Shared Services arrangement
• Ability to call in temporary staff for peak workloads
• Business continuity plan

Pensions Services: • Testing software
• Internal and External Audits
• Standardisation of systems and processes
• All processes and calculation have a “doer” and a separate
“checker”
• Monthly mortality screening for pensions in payment
• Declaration of Entitlement forms annually to pensioners and
beneficiaries living overseas or upon mail being returned
• Participation in National Fraud Initiative reporting
• Strong financial plan for HFRA
• Planned budget
• Aim to complete all Home Office returns on time

• Scheme Advisory Board
• Local Government Association (LGA)
• Regional Fire Pension Officer Groups
• Fire Pension Board
• Employer Pension Manager as a dedicated resource liaising
between
o Fire Employer Group & Pensions Admin Group, pulling together
o Key Accountabilities for IBC Pensions Admin Team, HR and
Hampshire Pension Services

Likelihood
after
mitigation

Impact
Risk score
after
after
mitigation mitigation Risk owner

1

3

3

Scheme Manager

2

3

6

Pension
Administrator

1

4

4

Scheme Manager

2

4

8

Scheme Manager

Fire Risk Register

Risks plotted before and after mitigations

BEFORE MITIGATION

Likelihood

Rare

Negligible
1

Page 118

Impact
Moderate
3

Major
4

1. Failure to administer the
pension scheme in a proper
and effective manner
2. Failure to pay the right
amounts on time and in line
with legislation

3. Failure to adequately
account for fund pension
contributions
4. Failure to identify and
interpret and implement
legislation correctly

Impact
Moderate
3
1. Failure to administer the
pension scheme in a proper
and effective manner
2. Failure to pay the right
amounts on time and in line
with legislation

Major
4
3. Failure to adequately
account for fund pension
contributions
4. Failure to identify and
interpret and implement
legislation correctly

Catastrophic
5

1

Unlikely

2

Possible

3

Likely

4

Almost certain

5

AFTER MITIGATION

Likelihood

Minor
2

Negligible
1

Rare

1

Unlikely

2

Possible

3

Likely

4

Almost certain

5

Minor
2

Catastrophic
5

APPENDIX H
To establish eligibility for 2006 NFPS for entrants to FPS pension scheme on or
after 01/04/2015

The member has to have been employed on 01/04/2012
and at Scheme Closing date (i.e. 31/03/2015) to have
eligibility for 2006 scheme

Start here

Yes

Was the member
employed as a FF by HFRA
at 01/04/2012?

Is there continuous
employment? (this can be
concurrent or consecutive)

Was the member
employed as a FF by
another FRA at 01/04/
2012?

No

Is the gap in service less
than 5 years?

No

No

Was the member
employed by another
public service body at 01/
04/2012?

No

No eligibility to
2006 scheme. Can
only join 2015
scheme

Yes

Is the gap in service less
than 5 years?

Yes

No

Yes
Yes

Page 119

No

Was the member under
age 46 on 01/04/2012?
(born on or after 02/04/
1966)

Yes
Eligible to join 2006
scheme as an
Unprotected
member

Yes

Eligible to join 2006
scheme as a Taper
member

Is the member returning to
employment from a
protected 1992
retirement?

Yes

Yes

No

If they re-entered the
public service body scheme
using the FRA date of
employemnt, would they
be a protected member?

No

Was the member aged
between 46 and 50 on 01/
04/2012? (born on or after
02/04/1962 up to and
including 01/04/1966)

Yes

Yes

No eligibility to
2006 scheme. Can
only join 2015
scheme
no

Was the member aged over
50 on 01/04/2012? (born
on or before 01/04/1962)

Is the gap in service less
than 5 years?
No

Yes
No

Eligible to join 2006
scheme as a
Protected member

No eligibility to
2006 scheme. Can
only join 2015
scheme

APPENDIX J
Last updated: 20 December 2019

Home Office – Sargeant fact sheet
Background
CARE Schemes
In 2014 or 2015 all main public service pensions, including the firefighters’ scheme, were reformed to
provide defined benefits on a career-average basis.
In a career average scheme, members build up pension each year based on a percentage of their
pensionable earnings and this is added to their pension account. The pension account contains the
pension built up in previous years and is revalued each year. When a member retires, the total built
up in your pension account is received as an annual pension. This is called Career Average Revalued
Earnings (CARE).
Reforms were made that reflected the recommendations of Lord Hutton’s Independent Public Service
Pensions Commission, which produced its final report in March 2011, and were intended to make
public sector pensions affordable and sustainable in the long term.
Transitional Protection
In all the main public service CARE schemes introduced in 2015, those closest to their scheme’s Normal
Pension Age (NPA), which is when a member could choose to retire with an unreduced pension, were
given ‘full’ transitional protection. In practical terms this meant that those within 10 years of their NPA
as at April 2012 were allowed to remain in their current scheme.
In most of these schemes those who were between 10 and 14 years from normal retirement age were
given ‘tapered’ transitional protection, meaning they did move to the new 2015 scheme, but at a later
date than those members who were not afforded transitional protection.
McCloud/Sargeant
Two claims were brought, one against the judges’ pension scheme (the McCloud case), the other
against the firefighters’ pension scheme (the Sargeant case) claiming that transitional arrangements
were discriminatory on the basis of age, sex and race. The claims were heard together.
The Court of Appeal determined, amongst other things that transitional protection gave rise to
unlawful age discrimination in the judges’ and firefighters’ pension schemes. The Supreme Court
refused the Government’s application for permission to appeal, meaning that the Court of Appeal
decision stands.
On 15 July 2019 the Chief Secretary to the Treasury made a written ministerial statement (HCWS1725)
confirming that, as ‘transitional protection’ was offered to members of all the main public service
pension schemes, the government believes that the difference in treatment will need to be remedied
across all those schemes. The statement set out that government, alongside the Employment Tribunal
process, will also engage with employer and member representatives, and the devolved
administrations, to help inform proposals to the Tribunal and in respect of the other public service
pension schemes.
A case management hearing was scheduled for 18 December 2019 in the Sargeant case, with a view
to setting out the procedural steps to appropriately implement the Court of Appeal decision.

Page 120

1

Last updated: 20 December 2019
1. What happened at the Firefighters’ case management hearing on the 18 December?
The Court of Appeal determined in its judgment in Sargeant that the transitional provisions in the
Firefighters’ pension schemes resulted in direct age discrimination between:
a) those who were members of the old scheme (the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme 1992) (“FPS”)
and were fully transitionally protected by remaining in that Scheme after 31st March 2015 as
a result of being an active member under the 1992 Scheme on 31st March 2012,
b) those who were members of the FPS as at 31st March 2012 and were not treated as fully
transitionally protected and moved to the new English Firefighters’ Pension Schemes after
31st March 2015,
In the light of this, the Tribunal in the Sargeant case gave an interim declaration that the claimants
(who all fell in within category (b)) are entitled to be treated as if they had been given full transitional
protection and had remained in their current scheme after 1 April 2015.
The Government intends to extend the same treatment to all members of the public service pension
schemes (whether claimants or not) who are in the same legal and factual position as the claimants.
The Government is also aware that many non-protected members may be better off in the new career
average pension arrangements than they would have been in the old pre-2015 pension schemes and
would suffer a detriment if they simply moved back to the old schemes. It is therefore the
government’s intention to ensure that such persons can keep the benefits they have accrued and
making the required changes to the public service pension schemes will take time.

2. Changes to the Firefighter Pension Schemes
The difference in treatment will in due course be removed for all members with relevant service across
all the main public service pension schemes – not just those who have lodged legal claims. Any solution
will need to ensure that all members can instead keep the pensions they have earned to date.
The Government will be launching a public consultation on changes to the schemes and before that
will hold a series of technical discussions with stakeholders. This will progress alongside the remedy
directed by the Tribunals in the Sargeant case.
For the Firefighters’ pension scheme, some members are likely to have been better off remaining in
their old scheme, while others may benefit more from the new scheme – that will depend on the
individual circumstances of affected members. Any changes to the scheme must take account of this
in order to ensure members can keep benefits they have already accrued.
Technical discussions will be held with the Firefighters’ Pensions Scheme Advisory Board (SAB). The
SAB comprises members of the Fire Brigade’s Union, Fire and Rescue Services Association, the Fire
Officers’ Association and the Fire Leaders’ Association as well as employer representatives.
These discussions will consider changes to the scheme which are necessary:


in order to remove discriminatory provisions from the public service pension schemes for nonclaimants; and

Page 121

2

Last updated: 20 December 2019


to ensure individuals can keep benefits they have accrued regardless of changes needed to
remove discrimination, for example if they would have been better off in the new scheme.

Following these discussions, the Government will formally consult on its proposals, providing a further
opportunity for input.

3. What about ill-health retirees and those who have already retired?
The Government is committed to urgently addressing the position of scheme members who have been
ill-health retired or have already retired from the 2015 scheme. Changes of this nature require time
to implement and the Home Office will provide further detail in due course. Please contact your FRA
if you are an affected claimant.

4. Does the McCloud/Sargeant judgment increase the costs of public service pensions?
Initial estimates suggest removing the difference in treatment the discrimination will add around £4bn
per annum to scheme liabilities across the public services from 2015.
The underlying aims of the 2015 reforms remain: public service pensions are and will continue to be
a significant cost for the taxpayer. The McCloud/Sargeant judgment does not alter the government’s
commitment to ensuring that the cost of public service pensions is both affordable for taxpayers and
sustainable for the long term.

5. Will the additional cost of removing the difference in treatment be borne by employers?
The most recent valuation process set employer contribution rates until 2023. The next valuation will
assess scheme costs in the round, in the usual way, and will set employer contribution rates from
2023. There are numerous factors that could affect the valuations between now and then, of which
the McCloud ruling is just one.
It is too early to say whether employer contribution rates will increase from 2023. If deficits do emerge
in the scheme, they will need to be paid off over the deficit recovery period in the usual way.

Page 122

3

APPENDIX K
Fire Pension Board calendar report of items for 2020/21

April 2020

July 2020

October 2020

January 2021

Page 123

STANDING ITEMS
Statutory items:
• HMRC Event reporting
2018/19
• Q3 2019/20 AFT returns to
HMRC
IDRP & Breaches
Risks
• Risk Register
• O’Brien case
• McCloud case
• Scheme Eligibility
Communication
• Presentations
• Member portal
• Meetings

STANDING ITEMS
Statutory items:
• Q4 2019/20 AFT returns to
HMRC

STANDING ITEMS
Statutory items:
• Q1 2020/21 AFT returns to
HMRC
• Annual Benefit Statements

IDRP & Breaches
Risks
• Risk Register
• O’Brien case
• McCloud case

IDRP & Breaches
Risks
• Risk Register
• O’Brien case
• McCloud case

STANDING ITEMS
Statutory items:
• Q2 2020/21 AFT returns to
HMRC
• Annual Pension Saving
Statements
IDRP & Breaches
Risks
• Risk Register
• O’Brien case
• McCloud case

Communication
• Presentations
• Member portal
• Meetings

Communication
• Presentations
• Member portal
• Meetings

Communication
• Presentations
• Member portal
• Meetings

ADDITIONAL ITEMS

ADDITIONAL ITEMS
Training / LNA update

ADDITIONAL ITEMS
Annual LGA Fire Conference

ADDITIONAL ITEMS
TPR Administration survey
TPR Scheme Returns
Calendar of items for next year

SEPARATE REPORTS
Legislation & LGA update
Annual Board Report

SEPARATE REPORTS
Legislation & LGA update
Annual Pensions Administration
report

SEPARATE REPORTS
Legislation & LGA update

SEPARATE REPORTS
Legislation & LGA update

APPENDIX L

Ref
A
A1
A2
A3
A4

Page 124

A5
A6
A7
A8
A9
A10
A11
A12
B
B1
B2
B3
B4
B5
B6
B7

Topic
Background and Understanding of the Legislative Framework of the Fire pension scheme
Differences between public service pension schemes like the Fire Pension Scheme (FPS) and private sector
trust- based schemes
Role of the Independent Public Service Pensions Commission (IPSPC) and its recommendations
Key provisions of the 2013 Pension Act
The structure of the scheme and the main bodies involved including the Responsible Authority, the
Scheme Manager, the Scheme Advisory Board, the Local Pension Board and the Scheme employers
An overview of local authority law and how Administering Authorities are constituted and operate
Scheme and connected scheme rules overview (including the Regulations)
The Firefighter Pension Scheme 1992
The Firefighter Pension Scheme 2006 and main changes from the 1992 scheme
The Firefighters Pension Fund
The Firefighters Compensation Scheme
Firefighters (Modified) Pension Scheme
The Firefighters Pension Scheme 2015
TOTAL 72
General pensions legislation applicable to the FPS - An overview of wider legislation relevant to the FPS
including:
Automatic Enrolment (Pensions Act 2008)
Contracting out (Pension Schemes Act 1993)
Data protection (Data Protection Act 1998)
Employment legislation including anti- discrimination, equal treatment, family related leave and
redundancy rights
Freedom of Information (Freedom of Information Act 2000)
Pensions sharing on divorce (Welfare Reform and Pensions Act 1999)
Tax (Finance Act 2004)
TOTAL 42

Familiar
(ü)

Almost
(?)

Unsure
(X)

5

1

0

3
2

2
3

1
1

4

2

0

3
2
4
4
2
2
3
4
38

2
3
1
1
2
2
2
1
22

1
1
1
1
2
2
1
1
12

3
2
4

3
3
2

0
1
0

4

2

0

4
1
1
19

2
5
4
21

0
0
1
2

C
C1
C2
C3
C4

Page 125

D
D1
D2
D3
D4
D5
D6
D7
D8
D9
E
E1
F
F1
F2
F3
F4
F5

Role and responsibilities of the Local Pension Board
Role of the Local Pension Board
Conduct and conflicts
Reporting of breaches
Knowledge and understanding
TOTAL 24

4
4
4
4
16

2
2
2
2
8

0
0
0
0
0

TOTAL 54

4
4
2
2
4
4
4
4
4
32

2
2
2
4
2
2
2
2
2
20

0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
2

2

2

2

3
4
2
3

3
1
1
1

0
1
3
2

2

2

2

14

8

8

Role and responsibilities of the Scheme Manager
Membership and eligibility
Benefits and the payment of benefits
Decisions and discretions
Disclosure of information
Record keeping
Internal controls
Internal dispute resolution
Reporting of breaches
Statements, reports and accounts
Funding and Investment
Requirement for triennial and other valuations
Role and responsibilities of Scheme Employers
Automatic Enrolment & Opting Out
Deduction and payment of contributions
Special contributions
Employer decisions and discretions
TUPE and outsourcing (including Fair Deal and the Best Value Authorities Staff Transfers (Pensions)
Directions 2007)
TOTAL 30

G
G1
G2
G3
G4
G5
G6
G7
G8
G9
G10
G11

Page 126

H
H1
H2
H3
H4
H5
H6
J
J1
J2
J3
J4
J5
J6

Tax and Contracting Out
Finance Act 2004
Role of HMRC
Registration
Role of ‘scheme administrator’
Tax relief on contributions
Taxation of benefits
Annual and lifetime allowances
Member protections (primary, enhanced, IP etc)
National Insurance
Contracting out (Pensions Scheme Act 1993)
Impact of abolition of contracting out in 2016
TOTAL 66

2
3
2
3
2
2
3
1
3
1
1
23

1
2
1
1
4
4
3
4
2
3
2
27

3
1
3
2
0
0
0
1
0
2
3
15

TOTAL 36

4
4
4
4
4
4
24

2
2
2
2
2
2
12

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

TOTAL 36

4
4
4
4
4
4
24

1
2
0
2
2
2
9

1
0
2
0
0
0
3

Role of advisors and key persons
Officers of the Fire and Rescue Authority
Auditor
Lawyers
Administrators – in house v. third party
Procurement of services
Contracts with third parties
Key Bodies connected to the Scheme - an understanding of the roles and powers of:
Courts
HMRC
Information Commissioner
Pensions Advisory Service
Pensions Ombudsman
The Pensions Regulator (including powers in relation to Local Pension Boards)

